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 17.15  Hrs.

 MESSAGE  FROM  RAJYA
 SABHA

 [English]

 Secretary-General :  Sir,  1  have  to

 report  the  following  message  received
 from  the  Secretary-General  of  Rajya
 Sabha  :

 “In  accordance  with  the  provi-
 sions  of  sub-rule  (6)  of  rule  186
 of  the  Rules  of  Procedure  and
 Conduct  of  Business  in  the
 Rajya  Sabha  I  am  directed  to
 return  herewith  the  Appropriation
 (Railways)  No.  3  Bill,  1991.  which
 was  passed  by  the  Lok  Sabha  at
 its  sitting  held  on  the  25th  Julv.
 1991.  and  transmitted  to  the
 Rajya  Sabha  for  its  recommenca-
 tions  and  to  state  that  this  House
 has  no  recommendations  to  make
 to  the  Lok  Sabha  in  regard  to
 the  said  Bill.”

 17.16  Hrs

 DISCUSSION  UNDER
 RULE  193

 Escape  from  the  custody  and  subse-

 quent  death  of  Shri  Shanmugam,  an
 accused  in  the  Rajiv  Gandhi  Assassi-

 nation  case

 [English]

 Shri  Anbarasu  Era  (Madras  Cen-
 tral):  Madam.  it  is  not  merely  that
 India  having  a  population  of  85  crores
 of  people  mourned  the  tragic  death
 of  our  leader  Shri  Rajiv  Gandhi.  The
 people  of  the  world  felt  that  they
 have  lost  their  kin  in  the  death  of
 Shri  Rajiv  Gandhi.  To  quote  the
 former  President  of  the  USA,.  Mr.
 Ronald  Reagan,  in  tears  he  said  that
 Rajiv  Gandhi  was  like  a  son  to  him.
 The  President  of  the  USSR  Mr.
 Mikhail  Gorbachev  bemoaned  that
 he  has  lost  his  bossom  friend.  The
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 French  President  Mr.  Nitterand  ex-
 pressed  in  unequivocal  words  that  the
 world  had  lost  its  dynamic  champion
 of  democracy  and  the  down-trodden.

 Madam,  it  is  in  the  history  of
 the  world  that  for  the  first  time,  the
 United  Nations  passed  a  Resolution
 paying  glorious  tributes  to  Shri  Rajiv
 Gendhi.  The  rose  has  been  plucked
 but  then  the  smell,  he  fragrance  will
 go  on  for  ever.

 Shri  Rajiv  Gandhi’s  love  for  the
 people  was  higher  than  his  love  for
 his  life.  Shri  Rajiv  Gandhi  epitomised
 the  concern  for  India  of  Shri  Motiial
 Nehru,  Pandit  Jawarharlal  Nehru,
 Shrimati  Indira  Gandhi.

 Madam,  without  casting  any  as-
 persion  on  the  investigating  agencies,
 I  would  like  to  raise  certain  ques-
 tions  regarding  the  episode  of  the
 escape  of  Shri  Shanmugam.  This
 episode  of  the  escape  of  Shri  Shan-

 .mugam  is  a  very  simple  one.  It  is
 not  a  complicated  one.  On  17th  July.
 he  volunteered.  surrendered  himseif
 before  the  police.  before  the  Court
 with  an  advocate  that  he  was  ready
 to  reveal  certain  facts  about  the  plot
 that  has  been  hatched  in  respect  of
 the  assassination  of  Shri  Rajiv  Gandhi.
 Then,  he  was  arrested  and  brought
 to  Vedaranyam.  Shri  Shanmugam
 was  brought  to  Vedaranyam  and  then
 at  Kodikarai  reserve  forest  he  revealed
 certain  facts  about  the  concealment  of
 transmitters,  high  explosives  including
 pertol  cans  and  ail  these  were  dug
 out.  After  finding  out  all  these  arms
 and  ammunitions.  he  was  taken  tack
 to  the  Inspection  Bungalow  where  the
 SIT  officials  were  staying.  He  was
 given  food  at  9.45  P.M.  in  the  same
 Inspection  Bungalow.  After  taking
 his  food.  under  the  guise  of  washing
 his  hands,  he  escaped  from  the  Inspec-
 tion  Bungalow.  He  went  for  washing
 his  hands  and  then  he  escaped.

 Shri  Indrajit  Gupta  (Midnapore)  :
 Where  did  he  go  to  washing  his  hands
 —to  the  bath-room  ?
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 Shri  Anbarasu  Era:  He  was
 stated  to  have  escaped.  Here,  I  would
 recall  that  on  17th  he  was  arrested.
 Cnterruptions).

 Shri  Sudarshan  Raychaudhary
 (Serampore)  :  The  Police  have  washed
 their  hands  off.  (/nterruptions).

 Shri  Anbarasu  Era:  Three  days
 were  left.  When  he  himself  volun-
 teered,  surrendered  naturally  he  would
 not  have  any  mind  of  escaping  from
 the  police  custody.  We  should  find
 out  this  aspect.  When  he  himself
 volunteered,  how  could  he  have
 escaped  ?  Within  these  three  days.
 who  met  him,  under  whose  instance
 he  made  his  bid  to  escape?  Or,  who
 instigated  him  to  escape  from  the
 custody  of  the  poli.e  ?  It  is  not  ory
 that.  There  were  two  constables
 guarding  him  when  he  went  for
 washing  his  hands  and  one  DSP  was
 there.  We  do  not  know  whether  they
 chased  him  or  not.  But  the  next  day
 his  body  was  found  hanging  from  a
 tree,  that  too,  fifty  yards  away  from
 the  Inspection  Bungalow.  It  is  really
 very  strange.

 Another  question  here  is,  hac  he
 made  up  his  mind  to  run  away  from
 the  police,  he  would  have  ran  away
 and  hidden  himself  somewhere :  had
 he  decided  to  kill  himself,  he  would
 have  consumed  some  poison’  or
 cyanide  cubes :  or  had  he  got  into  the
 hands  of  somebody,  they  would  have
 murdered  him  there  itself  and  his
 body  would  have  been  thrown.  But
 the  police  say  that  his  body  was  found
 fifty  vards  away  from  the  Inspection
 Bungalow  hanging  from  the  tree.  It
 fis  really  a  very  strange  thing.  (/nter~
 ruptions).

 Shri  Sudarshan  Raychaudhary :
 From  where  did  he  get  the  rope?

 Shri  Anbarasu  Fra:  That  is  also
 there.  I  am  coming  to  that  point
 also.  Were  the  police  not  vigilant
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 throughout  the  night?  What  were

 they  doing?  Who  gave  him  the

 rope  ?

 Another  thing  is  about  the  dress.
 When  he  ran  away  he  was  having  a
 white  shirt  anda  dhoti.  But  when
 his  body  was  found  hanging,  a  lungi
 was  found  below  him  and  _  he  was
 having  an  underwear.  How  did  he
 change  the  dress  ?  That  means,  within
 three  days,  somebody  would  have
 advised  him,  somebody  would  have
 instigated  him  to  escape  from  the
 police  custody.  And  they  would  have
 been  waiting  there  to  take  him.  It  is
 probable  that  they  would  have  taken
 him  to  some  house  or  some  other
 place  of  abode  and  killed  him  and
 brought  the  body  there  and  hanged
 him  to  the  tree.  it  is  probable  that
 this  man  had  this  in  connivance  with
 the  local  police.  It  is  admitted  that
 Shri  Shanmugam  was  a  well-known
 smuggler  and  was  a  friend  of  LTTE
 people.  It  appears  that  the  entire
 Thanjavur  police  was  under  his  con-
 trol.  If  you  go  through  the  history  of
 that  man,  God  only  #  0५४४५,  how  many
 times  the  Superintendent  of  Police  of
 that  particular  district  was  transferred.
 Whenever  Shri  shanmugam  warted
 SP  to  be  transferred  he  would  teve
 transferred  him.  That  is  how  he  had
 the  control  und  even  the  influence
 over  the  then  DMK  Governmert.
 The  then  DMK  Government  was  res-
 ponsible  for  the  LTTE  menace  in
 Tamil  Nadu.  ।  know  the  hon.  Mini-
 ster  Shri  Chidambaram  is  here.  he
 was  very  vociferous  time  and  again
 in  warning  the  DMK  Government
 about  this.  The  Labour  Minister
 Shri  Ramamurthy  was  warning  time
 and  again  that  the  LTTE  menace
 was  spreading  in  Tamil  Nadu.  No-
 body  cared  for  that.  So  the  DMK
 Government  patronised  the  LTTE
 people.  You  can  look  at  the  history
 of  the  police  and  see  how  many  were
 transferred  during  that  period.  Police
 force  was  kept  as  per  the  whims  and
 fancies  of  Shri  Shanmugam.  Who
 brought  the  body?  These  facts  have
 not  been  properly  explained  by  the
 hon.  Minister.
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 And  again  what  weve  the  police
 doing  at  that  time?  When  he  made
 that  escape.  did  they  chase  him?  I
 would  like  to  know  whether  all  the
 roads  were  blocked;  whether  the

 police  force—SIT  and  other  CBI
 force—which  were  staying  in  the
 Bungalow  were  sleeping  or  were
 awake.  All  these  facts  are  to  be

 properly  probed  into.

 Again.  immediately  the  police
 force  or  the  CBI  could  have  caught
 hold  of  the  wife  of  Shri  Shanmugam.

 -The  wife  of  Shri  Shanmugam  might
 be  knowing  all  the  facts  with  whom
 he  had  talks.  Who  were  the  accom-
 plice  of  Shri  Shanmugam  ?

 These  facts  were  also  sot  known.
 Soon  after  his  arrival  at  Vedaranyan.
 Mr.  Shanmugham  had  called  some  of
 his  persons—his  henchmen.  aid  he
 had  instructed  them  to  ह  and  show
 the  places  wherever  these  arms  and
 ammunitions  were  hidden.  ।न  fact.  I
 was  told.  even  Shanmugham  did  not
 know  the  places  where  all  these  arms
 and  ammunitions  were  hidden.  Only
 his  henchmen.  his  accomplices  were
 knowing  all  the  facts.  Whether  all
 these  persons  were  arrested:  were
 these  persons  under  custody  or  not:
 what  is  the  information  they  have
 received  from  them?  It  is  not  yet
 known  to  this  august  House.

 Another  thing  IT  would  like  to
 ask  is  who  are  the  political  party
 leaders  :  or  the  persons:  or  the  local
 political  party  people  shielding  14.
 Shanmugham  ?  That  question  shoukd
 also  be  gone  into.  It  mav  he  DMK .
 it  may  be  DK  or  it  may  be  even
 Congress.  I  do  not  want  to  shield
 anybody  here.  Even  if  it  is  the  Con-

 gressmen,  they  should  be  properly
 interrogated  and  they  should  be
 booked.  Because  1  loved  my  leader
 than  anybody  else  here.  I  was  told
 there  were  also  some  congressmen
 here,  who  were  shielding  him.  There-
 fore,  1  once  again  request  our  hon.
 Home  Minister  to  investigate  as  to
 who  are  the  persons  involved.  who
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 were  shielding  and  helping  Mr.  Shan-
 mugham.  This  should  be  enquiied
 properly  and  it  should  be  brought  to
 light.

 ।  d०  not  want  to  cast  any  asper-
 sions  or  I  do  not  want  to  qucstion
 the  integrity  of  the  Chief  of  SIT,
 Mr.  Kartikeyan.  I  know  him  per-
 sonally.  I  do  not  want  to  accuse.  I
 know,  he  is  a  man  of  integrity,  a
 man  of  high  order.  Because  of  his
 strenuous  efforts,  I  know.  so  many
 facts  were  brought  to  light.  But  the
 pity  is  that  such  a  man  of  high  inte-
 grity,  under  whom  investigation  is
 being  carried  on,  how  come  this  lapse
 had  happened.  How  did  Mr.  Shanmu-
 gham  escape?  This  is  reaily  strange.

 ।  cannot  believe.  how  a  man  who
 volunteered  himself  to  disclose  certain
 facts  and  personalities  who  were  asso-
 ciated  in  the  plot  of  the  assassination
 can  escape  himself.  It  is  really  a
 strange  episode.

 Further.  Sir,  I  understand  that
 there  is  nc  coordination  between  the
 CBI  and  the  local  police.  The  focal
 police  give  one  version  reyarding  the
 escape  of  Mr.  Shanmugham.  the  CBI
 and  the  SIT  gives  a  different  version.
 1.  therefore.  request  the  hon.  Home
 Minister.  through  you  Madam.  to  set
 right  the  House  first.  sc  that  the
 real  culprit  be  booked.

 ।  am  of  the  opinion  that  when
 Mr.  Shanmugham  escaped  somebody
 would  have  been  waiting  there  to
 take  him.  Perhaps.  it  may  be  LTTE
 men:  it  may  be  some  DMK  people :
 or  his  own  accomplices  ov  may  be
 any  man  from  Congress.  What  I  feel
 is  that  probably  some  LTTE  people
 would  have  been  waiting  for  him  to
 catch  him  and  thev  would  have  taken
 him  and  strangulated  him  to  death.
 ।  definitely  not  ।  suicide.  ।
 should  be  a  strangulation  to  death.

 Therefore.  what  I  demand  from
 the  Home  Minister  is  that  a  special
 investigation  team  headed  bv  a  sitting
 Judge  of  the  High  Court  should  be
 appointed  exclusively  for  the  purpose
 of  investigating  this  Shanmugham
 episode.  This  episode  should  not  be
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 clubbed  with  the  main  issue  of  the
 assassination  of  Shri  Rajiv  Gandhi ;
 otherwise  the  main  issue  will  be  side-
 tracked.

 I  would  like  to  point  out  here
 that  the  State  police  claimed  that  they
 were  able  to  nab  all  the  LTTE  peuple
 from  Tamilnadu;  but  otili  I  have
 information  that  area  as  like  Veda-
 ranyam,  Muthupettai,  Adhirama-
 pattinam,  Mallipattinam  and  Kottai-
 pattinam  and  Mimisal  are  all  not  free
 from  LTTE  movements.  Therefore,
 I  want  to  request  our  Home  Minister
 that  these  areas  also  should  be  brought
 under  the  control  of  military  besides
 the  coastal  areas.

 Another  fact  about  the  main
 issue  which  I  would  like  to  bring  to
 the  notice  of  the  august  House  is
 that  on  the  day  of  the  assassination.
 the  State  police  was  very  careless  in
 providing  security  for  Shri  Rajiv
 Gandhi.  You  are  aware  that  Shri
 Rajiv  Gandhi  was  classified  as  a  2.
 person  who  was  facing  imminent
 danger  of  life  from  terrorists.  When
 such  a  personality  goes  to  a  meeting.
 every  individual  should  have  been
 frisked  ;  they  should  have  been  check-
 ed  properly  and  a  list  of  those  who
 wanted  to  garland  him  should  have
 been  prepared  and  they  should  have
 been  arranged  in  2  row.  ।  have  my
 own  information  that  nothing  of  the
 sort  was  conducted.  Nobcay  was
 checked.  Simply  whoever  came  there
 were  allowed  to  stand  in  the  row.

 Tt  is  really  strange  that  the  assas-
 sin  lady  was  wearing  a  kurta  and
 pyjama.  In  Tamilnadu,  to  identify
 such  person  is  very  easy.  Normally
 in  Tamilnadu  ladies  wear  sarees.  But
 this  lady  was  wearing  a  kurta  and
 payjama.  Very  easily  the  police  could
 have  picked  her  up.  It  is  due  to
 the  sheer  carelessness  and_  colossal
 carelessness  of  the  State  police  that
 this  assassination  took  place.  I  do
 not  know  why  the  IG  of  Police  who
 was  in  charge  of  security  arrangement:
 on  that  particular  day  was  spared.
 He  should  be  taken  to  task.  Till
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 now  no  action  has  been  taken.  I  do
 not  know  who  is  shielding  him  fur-
 ther.  It  was  such  a  bad  arrangement  :
 only  half  barricade  was  there  near
 the  dais;  backside  there  was  no
 barricade.  These  are  all  the  factors
 which  should  be  taken  into  considera-
 tion.

 I  was  so  dear  to  him  and  I  also
 liked  him  so  much.  Even  when  I  was
 taking  part  in  the  debate  on  the
 Railway  Budget,  |  insisted  that  the
 place  Sriperambathur  should  be  con-
 nected  to  Madras  with  an  electric
 train.  Because  it  has  now  become  a
 pilgrimage  centre  rather  than  a  tourist
 centre.  Once  again  I  demand  and
 the  Home  Minister  should  also  recom-
 mend  that  the  place  should  be  con-
 nected  by  an  electric  train  from
 Madras  to  Sriperambathur.

 Another  factor  is  that  Sriperam-
 bathur  is  such  a  small  place  where
 there  are  only  three  roads  Soon
 after  the  incident  took  place  if  all  the
 three  roads  had  been  blucked  detinitely
 we  would  have  arrested  the  culprits.
 One  road  leads  to  Thiruvellavur,
 another  road  leads  to  Bangalore  and
 the  third  road  leads  to  Madras.  If
 all  the  three  roads  had  been  blocked,
 naturally  we  would  have  arrested
 Sivarasan  and  Subha.  But  the  police
 did  not  take  any  interest  in  carrying
 out  such  a  security  arrangement.
 Therefore  it  is  really  a  pity  and  a
 national  shame  that  even  after  the
 assassination  of  such  a  leader.  the
 police  force  have  not  taken  sufficient
 interest  to  arrest  the  culprits.  Even
 in  the  Shanmugam  episode  it  has
 happened  only  due  to  the  carelessness
 of  the  investigating  agency-—maybe
 the  local  police  or  maybe  in  conni-
 vance  with  some  political  bigwigs.

 So  I  demand  that  a  judicial
 enquiry  by  a  sitting  judge  of  the  High
 Court  should  be  held.  A_  proper
 enquiry  should  be  conducted  in
 respect  of  all  the  aspects  that  I  have
 narrated  just  now.

 With  these  words,  I  conclude.
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 [Translation]

 Shri  Ram  Naik  (North  Bombay)  :
 Madam  ‘Chairman,  some  people  were
 caught  after  the  assassination  of
 former  Prime  Minister  Shri  Rajiv
 Gandhi.  After  the  arrest  of  Shanmu-
 gam,  it  was  said  that
 of  the  14  people  arrested.

 he  was  one

 [English]

 He  was  the  kingpin  in  Rajiv
 Gandhi  assassination  case.

 [Translation]

 After  the  arrests,  some  of  them
 were  taken  to  Vedarnayam  and  from
 the  information  in  the  newspapers  and
 from  the  statement  made  by  the  hon.
 Minister,  it  is  known  that  121  boxes
 of  explosives.  50  handgrenades  and
 20  wireless  sets  were  recovered.  It
 is  very  shameful  for  the  Union  Home
 Ministry  or  the  State  Home  Depart-
 ment  that  person  escapes  from  custodv
 like  this,  when  he  has  fully  co-opera-
 ted  in  finding  these  ammunitions.
 Why  there  has  been  so  much  “Sloppi-
 nessਂ  ?

 [English]

 1  do  not  know.

 [Translation]

 Was  this  a  police  custody  o:  a
 friendly  custody?  When  sch  a
 dangerous  crimina:  gets  away  after
 being  caught.  ५  appears  t:  me  that
 the  Home  Mnhnister  owes  an  explana-
 tion  to  the  country.

 [Translation]

 But  what  is  this  ?

 The  statement  made  by  the  hon.
 Minister  gives  no  explanation.  Ano-
 ther  thing,  which  has  been  men-
 tioned  in  the  statement,  appears  to
 me  quite  serious.  In  the  para  3  of
 the  statement,  it  has  been  mentioned
 who  was  Shanmugam  ?
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 [English]

 As  per  informaticn  received  from
 the  CBI,  Shri  Shanmugasn  was  a  well-
 known  smuggler  and  was  found  to
 have  been  helping  LTTE  elements
 with  shelter  etc.,  etc.

 [Translation]

 Is  a  smuggler  well-known?  A
 statement  is  being  made  by  the  Home
 Minister.

 [English]

 ।  can  understand  and  you  can
 say  that  he  was  a  notorious  smuggler.

 [Translation]

 It  appears  to  me.

 [English]

 Do  not  take  it  that  lightly.

 [Translation]

 The  graveness  of  the  issue  was
 not  taken  into  account  at  the  time  of
 the  drafting  of  the  statement.  The
 Home  Minister  should  revise  this
 statement,  as  it  will  go  in  the  record.
 It  is  not  good  for  the  Home  Minister
 to  say  such  a  thing  in  the  Lok  Sabha.
 Therefore,  some  change  should  be
 made  in  it.  This  should  not  happen
 in  the  future.

 It  appears  10  ne  that  some  inci-
 dents  have  taken  place  after  this
 statement  was  inade  on  the  24th.
 If  the  Home  Minister  had  given  some
 information  earlier,  more  details
 could  have  been  known  at  the  time
 of  discussion.  I  have  to  sav  some-
 thing  on  the  basis  of  the  information
 gathered  from  the  newspapers  and
 from  his  statement  in  the  Rajya  Sabha.
 We  should  have  known  earlier  whether
 those  policemen  have  been  suspended,
 from  whose  custody  he  escaped  ?
 Two  constables  were  suspended.  Has
 his  work  finished  by  just  suspending
 the  two  of  them  ?

 I  still  remember  that  ‘uring  the
 tenure  of  Shri  Lal  Bahadur  Shastri
 as  Railway  Minister,  there  was  a

 train  accident  and  50,  he  resigned.
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 He  was  not  at  fault  for  that  acci-
 dent,  but,  being  the  Railway  Minister,
 he  resigned.  He  immediately  owed
 the  responsibility  of  that  accident.  I
 don’t  know  who  is  responsible  for
 this  incident—the  State  Home  Minis-
 ter,  the  Union  Home  Minister  or  the
 Incharge  of  the  C.B.1.

 [English]

 Do  not  leave  it  only  to  the  two
 constables.

 [Translation]

 Only  two  constables  have  been
 punished.  He  has  said  that  an
 enquiry  had  been  ordered  and  a
 Magistrate  would  inquire  into  it.  It
 has  been  mentioned  in  this  Statement
 that  (English)  “A  Magisterial  inquiry
 has  been  ordered.”

 [Translation]

 And  an  Additional  Director  of
 C.B.I.  has  been  ordered  to  inquire
 into  it.  Therefore.  it  appears  to  me
 that  there  will  be  no  proper  inquiry.

 [English]

 The  country  wants  to  know
 because  the  case  about  assassination
 of  Shri  Rajiv  Gandhi.  is  concerned.

 [Translation]

 We  certainly  had  political  diffe-
 rences  with  Shri  Rajiv  Gandhi,  but
 after  all,  he  was  the  former  Prime
 Minister  of  the  country  and  therefore.
 this  inquiry  should  be  done  bv  a
 person  equal  to  the  Judge  of  the  High
 Court.  Otherwise  there  no  dffe-
 rence  between  a  thief  and  an  assassin
 of  Rajiv  Gandhi  so  far  their  escape
 is  concerned.

 [English]

 We  are  treating  the  both  on  par.
 In  this  way  it  will  serve  no  purpose.
 I  demand  that  this  inquiry  should
 not  be  just  a  Mazisterial  inquiry.
 but  a  High  Court  Judge  should  be
 ordered  to  inquire  into  it.  It  has  also
 been  given  to  -understand.
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 [English]

 I  do  not  know  how  far  it  is  true.

 (Translation)

 At  the  time  of  the  cremation  of
 Shanmugam,  the  people  of  neigh-
 bouring  villages  had  warned  the  police
 not  to  attend  the  cremation,  failing
 which  some  quarrel  might  take  place.
 The  police  was  threatened  like  this.
 Is  it  true?  If  so.  1  would  like  to
 know  whether  the  police  had  attended
 the  cremation  ?

 There  is  an  editorial  in  the
 ‘Indian  Express’  of  today,  the  29th
 (English)  under  the  heading  “Utterly
 Irresponsible”.  I  would  just  read  only
 two  lines:  “Mr.  5.  छ.  Chavan’s  theory
 about  certain  forces  in  super  power
 countries  conspiring  to  kill  Mr.  Rajiv
 Gandhi  is  so  utterly  preposterous  ct
 this  stage  in  the  investigation  that
 one  must  wonder  about  the  Home
 Minister’s  capacity  abour  logical
 thinking.

 [Translation]

 I  do  not  want  to  cast  aspersicns,
 the  way  they  have  been  cast  in  it.
 However.  I  would  like  to  know
 whether  the  Government  have  deci-
 ded  as  to  how  the  enquiry  ordered
 by  it,  who  would  be  conducted.

 [English]

 Let  him  find  out.
 Mnister  in-between  says.

 If  the  Home

 [Translation]

 That  they  have  come  to  this  con-
 clusion,  then  I  think,  the  enquiry  may
 not  be  continued.  You  must  have
 made  a  statement  outside,  you  should
 make  it  clear  to  the  House  also
 whether  the  Government  suspect  the
 involvement  of  any  International
 power  in  it  and  also  elaborate  the
 words  used—
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 [English]

 _  “Super  power  countries
 volved.”

 ate  in-

 [Translation]

 The  number  of
 countries  is  not  large.

 super  power

 [English]

 To  whom  are  you  hinting  at  ?

 [Translation]

 You  should  make  that  point  also
 clear.  If  this  is  done  the  country
 would  be  assured  that  the  rest  of  the
 investigation  in  regard  to  the  assassi-
 nation  of  Shri  Rajiv  Gandhi  will  be
 carried  out  properly.  I  would  iike
 the  Minister  of  Home  Affairs  to

 clarify  the  situation.  With  these
 words  1  conclude.

 [English]

 Shri  K.  V.  Shangkabalu  (Dhar-
 mapuri):  Madam  vhairperson,  _  this

 country  has  witnessed  a  great  deal  of
 violence  from  the  day  of  our  Incenen-
 dence.  The  great  leaders.  who  were

 responsible  for  bringing  this  nation
 up.  sacrificed  their  lives.  The  fist
 one,  as  we  all  know.  Mahatnia  Gandhi
 was  murdered  by  the  bullets.  Subse-
 quently.  during  the  recent  years.  we
 lost  another  great  leader,  Shrimati
 Indira  Gandhi.  Again  in  the  recent
 past.  we  have  lost  one  of  the  greatest
 statesmen  and  dynamic  leaders  of  our
 country  --Particularly  the  Congress-
 Shri  Rajiv  Gandhi  by  vivience.  An
 act  of  this  kind  is  a  regular  occurrence
 in  this  country  today.  Evervone  feels
 that  it  should  not  have  happened.
 But  such  acts  are  happening  conti-
 nuously.  Our  Home  Minister  is  sit-
 ting  here  and  of  course  he  is  going
 to  reply  this  point.  But  today’s
 discussion  is  pertaining  to  the  incident
 which  had  taken  place  in  Tamil  Nadu.
 We  know  that  there  was  an  announce-
 ment  of  the  CBI's  investigation  parti-
 cularly  under  the  dynamic  leadership
 of  Shri  Kartikeyan,  a  well-known
 disciplined  and  outstanding  officer  of
 the  police  cadre.  After  his  induction
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 and  stewardship,  we  heard  and  we
 are  also  knowing  that  effective  steps
 are  taken  to  get  the  culprits  of  the
 assassination.  What  was  surprising
 Madam,  with  regard  to  Shanmugam's
 case  is  that,  as  may  honourable  col-
 league  also  has  said,  a  person  was  in
 police  custody  and  he  was  allowed  to
 go  out  and  the  next  morning,  he  was
 seen  hanging  near  the  guest  house
 where  he  was  interrogated.  This  is
 a  strange  incident.  Madam,  ।  would
 ask  the  hon.  Home  Minister  85  to
 how  was  it  possible  for  him  to  escape.
 We  want  to  know  whether  the  officers
 who  were  involved  in  this  incident
 belong  to  the  CBI  or  the  State  Police.
 Under  whose  custody  was  he  able  to
 go  out  of  the  tourist  bungalow ?

 Secondly,  the  police  and  the  CBI
 version  say,  that  in  the  next  24  hours,
 they  were  searching  for  him.  He
 had  escaped  and  they  were  searching
 him.  Who  was  on  the  search?  Who
 is  responsible  for  this  and  what  was
 their  responsibility?  And  they  are
 saying  that  the  next  morning,  he  was
 found  hanging  near  the  same  premises
 of  50  meters.  This  is  uot  only  myste-
 rious  but  the  people  who  were  having
 lot  of  hope  in  the  CBI  are  now
 losing  hope.  Yhat  very  hope  iं
 destroyed.  I  would  Ike  to  know
 whether  such  kind  of  officers  who  were
 involved  in  the  incident  are  a  party
 to  the  conspirators  or  the  persons
 who  made  Shanmuzam  to  be  killed.
 Who  was  the  real  instrumental  behind
 this  scenario?  This  is  to  be  fuynd
 out.

 Madam.  another  point  15  that,
 which  appeared  in  the  Press,  Shanmu-
 gam  was  supposed  to  go  out  of  the
 house  to  wash  his  hanus  after  having
 food.  When  there  was  a  wash  hasin
 within  the  guest  nouse,  where  was
 the  necessity  for  him  to  go  out  and

 It  means  that
 somebody,  in  connivance  with  the
 Police  or  the  officers  in  charge,
 allowed  him  to  go  out  of  the  guest
 house.  This  point  is  very  clear.
 Only  the  Home  Minister  will  be
 knowing  as  to  what  had  happened
 truly.  The  investigating  agencies,  the
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 vigilance  agencies  and  so  many  other
 Officers  are  also  trying  to  find  out  the
 truth.  But  so  far  no  information  is
 known  to  the  public  or  the  people
 concerned.

 Another  point  is  that  he  went  out
 at  night  and  in  the  next  morning.  he
 was  hanged  to  death  or  supposed  to
 be  hanging.  Everybody’s  understan-
 ding  is  that  while  one  is  hanging  to
 death,  his  feet  will  certainly  be  above
 the  ground  level.  But  Shanmugam’s
 feet  was  touching  the  ground.  So,
 certainly  he  must  not  have  hanged
 himself.  Certainly.  he  was  made  to
 die  and  after  he  was  dead  he  was
 brought  to  the  tree  and  was  hanged
 down.  That  must  have  happened.  The
 common  sense  says  that  if  someone
 hangs  himself  to  death  then  his  body
 will  always  be  haugnig  above  the
 earth.  But  the  photo  clearly  shows
 that  he  was  hanging  with  his  feet
 touching  the  ground.  ।  think  the
 Home  Minister  knows  it  and  we  wish
 him  to  ciarify  this  roint.

 Then  there  is  another  news  in  the
 Tamil  Nadu  Newspaper.  I  would  like
 to  quote  from  a  Tamil  Nadu  evening
 Daily,  the  Makkal  Kural.  It  says
 that  one  Superintendent  of  Police  was
 not  allowed  to  go  inside  the  bungalow
 where  the  investigation  wes  going  on
 and  also  that  the  police  authorities
 are  supposed  to  help  them  to  cvordi-
 nate  with  the  CBI.  So.  the  S.P.  was
 not  allowed  to  go  into  the  guest
 house.  The  C.B.I.  authorities  now  say
 that  the  two  police  constables  who
 are  now  suspended  clearly  shows  that
 they  are  responsible  for  the  escape
 of  Shri  Shanmugam.  If  that  is  so
 then  the  action  is  right  but  the  State
 Police  says  that  the  two  constables
 were  responsible  to  help  the  C.B.1.
 and  they  were  not  responsible  (0
 guard  Shri  Shanmugam.

 SIT,  that  is  the  Special  Investi-
 gating  Team  consisting  of  the  CBI
 Officers,  the  LB.  officer  and  the  State
 Police.  The  Hon.  Home  Minister  may
 be  knowing  the  composition  of  this
 team  exactly.  Contradictory  versions
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 are  being  given  to  the  Press  and
 public  and  this  shows  that  they  are
 not  going  in  the  right  direction ;  that
 there  is  some  confusion  and  they  are
 thus  accusing  each  other.  It  appears
 that  they  are  not  going  in  the  right
 direction  in  which  they  are  assigned

 to  go.

 ।  would  like  to  ask  the  hon.
 Home  Minister  that  if  this  is  the  fate
 of  the  case  of  a  leader  of  the  great
 stature  like  Shri  Rajiv  Gandhi  then
 what  will  happen  to  the  case  of  an
 ordinary  common  man  of  this  country.

 |  remember  that  when  Shri  Rajiv
 Gandhi  died  everybody  in  this  country
 wept  as  if  he  was  their  own  brother
 or  a  family  member.  The  way  this
 case  is  being  handled,  1  very  much
 doubt  whether  we  vill  be  able  to  do
 justice  or  whether  we  will  be  able  to
 reach  to  the  culprit  who  was  behind
 his  assassination.  Whoscever  he  may
 be.  whomsoever  the,  may  be  sup-
 ported  by.  the  Government's  duty  is
 to  bring  them  to  light  and  punish
 them.  This  is  the  duty  of  the  Govern-
 ment.

 In  Tamil  Nadu.  evervday.  a
 number  of  people  are  being  nabbed
 in  the  guise  of  militants.  The  mili-
 tant  activity  is  going  on.

 I  would  urge  upon  the  Govern-
 ment  of  India  to  come  forward  with
 a  concrete  plan  to  curb  the  menace
 of  militancy  in  the  Siate  of  Tamil
 Nadu.  This  is  not  only  happening
 in  Tamil  Nadu  but  alsoਂ  in  many
 other  States.  Unless  and  until  you
 curb  this,  the  very  purpose  of  govern-
 nance  will  be  defeated.

 Madam  Chairman,  I  would  urge
 upon  the  Government  and  the  Home
 Minister  to  take  firm  steps  to  nab  the
 culprits  of  this  episode  along  with
 the  culprits  of  the  Rajiv  Gandhi  assas-
 sination  case.  It  should  be  dealt
 with  by  the  honest  officers  and  they
 should  be  given  free  hand  in  order
 to  bring  the  culprits  to  book.

 Mr.  Chairman :  The  time  allotted
 for  this  discussion  under  Rule  193  i
 2  hours.  It  is  already  over.  ‘So,
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 would  now  seek  the  consent  of  the
 House  for  extending  the  time  of  the
 House  till  7  o’clock.

 Several  hon.  Members:  Yes.

 Mr.  Chairman:  The  time  for  this
 discussion  is  extended  till  7  o'clock.

 Shri  Chandra  उर  Yadav  (Azam-
 garh):  Madam  Caairman,  this  is  one
 of  the  saddest  comment  on  the  secu-
 rity  of  our  country.  In  a  situation
 when  a  lot  of  violence  was  growing
 in  our  country,  when  terrorist  acii-
 vities  were  increasing  day  by  day
 and  it  was  a  well-known  fact  that  the
 risk  on  lives  of  many  of  our  political
 leaders  is  there  and  it  was  also  very
 well-known  that  there  are  certain
 forces  which  were  planning  to  kill
 some  of  the  leading  personalities,
 political  leaders  of  our  country,  in
 such  circumstances,  the  assassination
 of  Rajiv  Gandhi  is  such  a  big  shame
 to  our  nation  that  we  could  not  save
 his  life.

 Whatever  facts  that  have  come  to
 light,  it  seems  to  be  a  very  well
 planned  conspiracy  to  kill  Rajiv
 Gandhi.  It  was  not  the  act  of  a  mad
 man.  It  was  not  the  act  of  some  one
 who  had  had  some  ideas  on  the  spot
 to  kill  him.  it  was  @  verv  well  plan-
 ned  conspiracy.

 17.59  Hrs.

 (Rao  Ram  Singh  in  the  Chair)

 1  have  lot  of  deubts  in  mind
 regarding  the  way  the  investigation  is
 going  on.  It  is  going  on  in  a  hapazard
 manner,  in  a  most  irresponsible  man-
 ner.  The  persons  comprising  of  the
 Special  Investigating  Team  are  coming
 out  openly  by  making  allegations
 against  each  other  and  holding  cne
 another  responsible  for  this  kind  of
 negligence.  This  act  only  proves  that
 we  will  not  be  able  to  catch  the  cul-
 prits  and  we  will  not  be  able  to  un-

 beaten  tia
 conspirators  who  were

 n  or  =  killin:
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 g  Shri  Rajiv

 Over  and  above—-I  have  not
 heatd  the  statement  of  the  Home
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 Minister.in  Rajya  Sabha  but  I  had
 read  it  in  the  newspaper-  -the  Home
 Minister  did  make  a  statement  in  the
 Rajya  Sabha  saying  that  there  is  a
 possibility  of  fureign  hand  in  his
 assassination.  He  said  it  very  cate-
 gorically.

 18.00  hrs.

 I  would  like  to  know  from  the
 Home  Minister  what  is  the  basis  of
 his  statement  that  he  has  made  in
 the  Parliament?  The  Home  Minister
 is  a  very  senior  Minister.  He  is  a
 responsible  person.  He  cannot  make
 such  a  statement  on  the  Floor  of  this
 House  without  naving  some  concrete
 proof.  He  should  take  this  House  into
 confidence.  Onze  he  has  made  this
 statement,  he  must  reveal  what  are
 the  sources  of  making  this  statement
 or  how  he  has  come  to  this  conclu-
 sion  that  foreign  hands  cre  involved
 in  it?  If  foreign  hands  are  involved
 in  it,  then  it  becomes  more  serious.
 Then  a  Special  Investigating  Team
 cannot  do  thar.  Aftcr  making  this
 statement,  what  the  Home  Minister
 is  going  to  do”?

 This  Shanmugam,  who  was  killed
 or  escaped  from  the  police  custody,
 was  not  an  ordinary  culprit  or  accused
 or  witness.  He  was  a  very  vital  link  in
 the  entire  episode.  a  person  who
 revealed  certain  very  important  things,
 a  person  who  wa;  likely  to  reveal
 much  more  important  evidence  in
 future.  It  means  that  it  was  not  just
 an  ordinary  escape:  because  there
 was  a  lapse  on  the  part  of  two  Consta-
 bles  that  he  had  escaped;  and  the

 mysterious  condition  in  which  he  was
 found  hanging.  1  he  escaped  that

 night  and  the  next  day,  as  my  friend
 Shri  Anbarasu  Era  says.  his  body
 was  found  hanging  and  the  police
 went  for  all-out  search:  it  means
 that  the  police  must  have  searched
 that  whole  urea  and  he  must  have

 gone  may  be  one  km  or  two  km  to
 some  hiding  place  for  changing  his
 clothes:  he  was  found  hanging  the
 next  day  within 15  km  of  that

 bungalow.  It  means  the  whole  thing
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 is  much  more  mysterious.  And  ac-
 to  the  statement  of  the  Home

 Minister,  DIG  police,  if  I  remember
 correctly,  SP  and  many  other  high

 police  officers  and  CBI  officers  were
 sitting  in  the  next  room.  What  a  care-
 lessness  in  the  case  of  such  a  very
 vital  witness,  who  was  involved  in
 the  assassination  of  the  former  Prime
 Minister,  on  the  parts  of  the  Special
 investigating  Team?  He  was  such
 a  vital  witness  who  revealed  so  many
 important  things.  And  by  that  time,
 his  background  must  have  been
 known  that  he  was.  if  not  a  well-
 known  notorious  person,  at  least  a
 well-known  notorious  smuggler.  That
 person  was  handed  over  tothe  care
 of  two  ordinary  Constables  and  all
 officers  are  sitting  very  merrily  in  the
 next  room.  That  person  was  escaped
 and  he  was  found  dead  the  next  day.

 Any  person  with  a  little  intelli-
 gence  should  have  known  that  in
 such  cases  the  vital  witnesses  always
 tried  to  liquidate  the  things,  eliminate
 the  witnesses.  What  happened  in
 Kennedy’s  case  ?  What  happened  in
 many  other  cases  of  important
 persons?  Therefore,  at  least.  they
 must  have  used  some  common  sense
 to  take  necessary  steps.  That  hap-
 pened  in  the  night ;  4  was  night  whea
 the  gentleman  was  taking  his  dinner ;
 and  then  he  escaped.

 I  think  the  whole  episode  is  a
 sad  commentry  on  our  administration.
 It  could  have  rocked  the  whole
 country  had  it  happened  in  ancther
 country.  We  are  taking  it  so  lightly
 that  just  by  suspending  two  Consta-
 bles,  we  seem  to  be  fulfilling  our  great
 national  responsibility.  After  this  epi-
 sode,  does  the  Home  Minister  _  still
 have  confidence  in  the  same  SIT ?
 Or  has  he  taken  any  steps  to  change
 the  team  and  appoint  some  other
 responsible  senior  officer  for  the
 further  investigation  ?  That  is  one.

 Secondly,  ।  would  like  to  know
 whether  any  Officer  has  -been  held
 responsible  for  .  not  making  -proper
 arrangements  tn  see  that  this  kind  of

 witnesses  are  well  guarded,  when  there
 ig  a  -history  behind  them.  We  have
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 seen  that  history  of  LTTE
 poet They  carry  poison.  They

 weapons,  they  commit  suicide.  They
 are  so  desperate  and  they  are  like
 a  suicide  squad.  After  knowing  all
 this  history  was  it  enough  that  he
 was  given  so  much  freedom  ?  He  was
 not  even  hand-cutied!  Nothing.
 There  were  no  guards  in  front  of  the
 bungalow  and  _  there  were  not  even
 enough  lights  at  least  for  them  to
 see  in  front  of  the  bungalow!  How
 does  this  gentleman  escape  when  all
 those  officers  were  sitting?  He  was
 not  a  very  young  man  who  could  go
 on  a  race  and  nobodv  could  chase  him.

 All  this  creates  a  very  serious
 doubt.  My  serious  doubt  is  that  this
 is  all  part  of  a  bigger  conspiracy..  Of
 course  Shri  Rajiv  Gandhi  was  assas-
 sinated,  he  became  the  victim  of  a
 well-planned  conspiracy.  Fortunately
 or  unfortunateiv,  there  was  President’s
 rule  at  that  time.  Otherwise  any
 State  Government  would  have  been
 held  responsible  for  that.  But  the
 State  happened  to  be  uuder  President’s
 rule  and  therefore  the  Government  of
 India  is  itself  responsible  for  run-
 ning  the  Central  administration  and
 they  cannot  go  scot-free.  They  also
 have  a  responsibility.

 Shri  Anbarasu  Era:  Do  you
 mean  the  Governor  of  Tamil  Nadu  ?

 Shri  Chandra  Jeet  Yadav  :  Every-
 body.  Tamil  Nadu  Governor,  the
 President  of  India,  I  do  not  know,
 who  else?  Because  it  was  the
 President’s  rule.

 Another  thing  I  would  like  to
 know  from  the  hon.  Home  Minister
 is  this.  Has  he  received  the  post-
 mortem  report  by  now?  What  does
 the  post-mortem  report  say?  If  the
 gentleman  was  «illed  and  hanged  the
 post-martem  report  would  very  clearly
 say  that  it  was  not  a  suicide  by
 hanging  and  that  he  was  killed  and
 hung  and  by  this  time  the  post-martem
 report  must  be  in  hands  of  Home
 Minister.  I  hope  that  the  Home
 Minister  when  he  replies,  would

 rould  place the  post-martem  report  before  the
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 House,  so  that  the  House  could
 know,  really  speaking,  as  to  how  he
 died  and  what  was  the  position.

 |.  An  Hon.  Member:  Is  it  not  a
 classified  document

 ?

 Shri  Chandra  Jeet  Yadav:  Cer-
 tainly  not.  It  is  not.

 Now,  while  concluding  my  inter-
 vention,  I  would  like  to  know  from
 the  Home  Minister.  how  he  wants
 to  assure  the  country  that  in  this  case
 of  Rajiv  Gandhi's  assassination,  the
 culprits  will  be  found  and  will  be
 punished  ?  At  least  it  should  not  go
 on  for  a  long  time  because  the  Home
 Minister’s  statement  gives  some  scope
 for  the  investigating  agency  to  say
 that  because  foreign  hands  are  in-
 volved,  they  had  to  send  their  teams
 to  foreign  countries  and  other  places
 to  find  out  the  foreign  hands  etc

 Also  there  is  a  danger  and  there
 is  a  serious  doubt  that  all  this  can
 unnecessarily  delay  the  investigation
 and  the  imvestigators  would  say  that
 they  were  not  able  to  procure  proper
 evidence  because  certain  foreign
 hands  and  their  elements  were  invol-
 ved  and  they  had  no  access  to  reach
 them,  and,  therefore.  really  speaking,
 they  could  identify  the  culprits.

 Another  thing  I  wuuld  like  to
 know  is,  whether  the  Government
 had  taken  up  this  matter  at  the  poli-
 tical  level  with  the  Government  of
 Sri  Lanka.  I  2m  asking  this  question
 because  many  people  are  connected
 with  all  these  things  and  particularly
 that  organisation  and  their  main  base
 is  another  country,  ie.,  Sri  Lanka.
 I  want  to  know  from  the  Home
 Minister  whether  at  political  level  the
 Government  of  India,  for  investigation
 burposes  and  to  reach  to  the  right
 conclusion,  has  approached  _  the
 Government  of  Sri  Lanka  so  that  they
 can  get  ‘help  in  mobilising  the  neces-

 sary  steps  to  reach  to  the  right
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 These  are  certain  things,  which  I
 would  like  to  know  from  the  Home
 Minister.

 Mr.  Chairman:  Before  I  call  the
 next  name,  I  request  Dr.  Laxmi
 Narayan  Pandey  to  present  the  report
 of  the  Business  Advisory  Committee.

 18.11  hrs.

 BUSINESS  ADVISORY
 COMMITTEE  THIRD

 REPORT

 {English]
 Dr.  Laxmi  Narayana  Pandeva

 (Mandsaur)  :  Sir,  I  beg  to  present  the
 Third  Report  of  the  Business  Advi-
 sory  Committee.

 DISCUSSION  UNDER
 RULE  193

 {Escape  from  the  custody  and  subse-
 quent  death  of  Shri  Shanmegam,  an
 accussed  in  the  Rajiv  Gandhi  Assassi-

 nation  case—Contd.

 [English]

 Mr.  Chairman:  Shri  P.  G.  Nara-
 yanan.

 Shri  B.  Rajaraviverma  (Pollachi)  :
 I  would  like  to  speak.

 Mr.  Chairman:  Now  1  call  the
 next  person,  Shri  ४.  9.  Raa.  Shri  Rao
 is  also  not  here.

 Now  I  call  Shri  Ramanna  Rai.

 Shri  B.  Rajaraviverma:  Sir.  the
 leader  of  my  party  sent  a  note  to  you.

 Mr.  Chairman:  I  can  only  call
 the  names  that  have  been  forwarded
 to  me  by  the  Chief  Whips  of  the

 parties  concerned.

 Shri  B.  Rajaraviverma :  My  name
 is  also  there.  I  have  sent  a  note.

 Mr.  Chairman  :  Okay,  I  will  try  to
 fish it  out.  Now  Shri  Ramanna  Rai
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 Savi  M.  Ramanna  Rai:  (Kasara-
 god):  Mr.  Chairman,  Sir,  this  is  a
 very  serious  matter  which  we  are  now
 discussing.

 This  matter  was  discussed  in
 Rajya  Sabha  also  and  the  Home
 Minister  gave  a  reply  to  the  discussion
 in  Rajya  Sabha.  In  reply  to  the  dis-
 cussion  he  said  :

 “JT  sincerely  feel  that  it  is  not  only
 the  LTTE  but  there  are  other
 forces  also  which,  in  fact,  are
 very  deeply  involved.  It  is  not  so
 easy  to  point  out  which  exactly  is
 the  agency.”

 It  is  very  clear.  (interruptions).

 Shri  A.  Charles  (Trivandrum) :
 May  I  know  whether  the  proceedings
 of  the  other  House  can  be  quoted
 here  ?

 Shri  Somnath  Chatterjee:  (Bol-
 pur)  :  The  Minister’s  statement  can  be
 quoted.  That  is  the  Government’s
 view.  (/nterruptions).

 Mr.  Chairman:  Unless  there  is
 some  particular  objection,  1  feel  that
 there  is  no  harm  in  quoting  it.

 Shri  M.  Ramanna  Rai:  It  is
 very  clear  that  foreign  hand  was  _in-
 volved  and  there  is  suspicion  about
 that.  We  are  not  only  having  suspi-
 टांगा  in  Shri  Rajiv  Gandhi's  assassina-
 tion  but  even  prior  to  that.  we  had
 such  kind  of  doubts  about  Shrimati
 Indira  Gandhi’s  assassination  also.

 The  report  of  the  inquiry  conduct-
 ed  by  the  Judges  about  the  assassina-
 tion  of  Shrimati  Indira  Gandhi  was

 t  particular  individuals  are  involv-
 and  further  investigation  is  neces-

 to  fix  the  real  culprits.  But  that
 was  50]  from  _  this
 There  also  the  hand  of  foreign

 is  suspected.  Had  that  report
 [९
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 not  acted  upon,  the  tragedy  i.e:  Rajiv
 Gandhi’s  assassination  had  happened.
 Now  my  submissions  is  that  it  is  very
 very  necessary  to  widen  the  scope  of
 inquiry  in  the  present  case.  Only  by
 that  process  the  country  will  be  able
 to  know  the  real  hand  behind  the
 assassination  of  Rajiv  Gandhi.

 In  the  other  House,  the  Home
 Minister  made  a  statement  and  said  :

 “An  attempt  was  made  to  see  that
 the  Congress  was  being  defeated
 and  in  order  to  defeat  the  Con-
 gress  everybody  in  the  country  and
 outside  thought  that  if  Rajiv
 Gandhi  was  eliminated  then,  of
 course,  the  Congress  would  not
 have  any  future  in  the  country.”
 I  do  not  agree  with  this  statement

 because  it  is  contrary  to  the  facts.
 We  know  that  one  instalment  of  pol-
 ling  took  place  in  the  country  prior  to
 Rajiv  Gandhi’s  assassination  and  two
 instalments  of  polling  took  place  after
 his  assassination.  If  the  Home  Minis-
 ter  is  correct,  then  in  that  case,  in  the
 polling  that  took  place  prior  to  Rajiv
 Gandhi’s  assassination  Congress  (I)
 must  have  won.  But  actually  what
 happened  was  that  in  the  polling  that
 took  place  prior  to  Rajiv  Gandhi’s
 assassination,  the  Congress  (I)  Party
 was  routed  and  it  is  only  in  the  polling
 that  took  place  after  the  assassination
 of  Rajiv  Gandhi  that  Congress  (I)  had
 a  surprise  victory.  It  shows  that  Rajiv
 Gandhi’s  assassination  favoured  Con-
 gress  (I)  because  of  the  sympathy
 wave.

 Mr.  Chairman:  That  has  hardly
 any  relevance  with  the  present  discus-
 sion.

 I  request  you  that  the  discussion
 is  on  the  statement  made  by  the  Minis-
 ter  of  Home  Affairs  in  the  House  on
 the  24th  July,  1991  regarding  escape
 from  custody  and  subsequent  death  of
 Shri  Shanmugam,  an  accused  in  the
 Rajiv  Gandhi  assassination  case.  I
 would,  therefore,  request  you  to  res-
 trict  your  discussion  only  to  the  state-
 ment  made  by  the  Home  Minister.

 Shri M.  Ramana  Ral:  Shanmu-
 gam  surrendered  on  17-7-91.  Yio  was
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 remanded  and  handed  over  to  police
 ‘on  18-7-91.  On  19-7-91  he  escaped.  On
 20-7-91  his  body  was  found  hanging
 and  on  21-7-91  he  was  cremated.  This
 is  the  position.  Now,  whether  actually
 de  facto  arrest  of  Shri  Shanmugam  was
 there?  That  is  a  real  point  for  conside-
 ration  by  this  august  House  because
 even  according  to  the  Home  Minister
 and  Police  also.  Shanmugam  was  a

 powerful  and  a  notorious  man,  and  he
 surrendered.  He  was  not  arrested  but,
 he  was  not  chained.  My  suspicion  is
 that  the  investigating  authorities  in-
 tended  to  make  him  approver.  So,  he
 was  given  alhthe  freedom  because
 actually  they  got  hold  of  Shanmugam
 to  make  him  an  approver.  That  is
 why  he  was  not  actually  handcuffed.
 That  is  why  there  was  no  police  guard.
 He  had  a  free  movement  throughout.
 The  report  of  the  police  also  is  that  his
 uncle’s  house  is  very  close  to  the  bun-

 galow  where  the  police  officer  was
 conducting  investigation.  Probably
 Shunmugam  was  allowed  to  go  and
 sleep  or  spend  the  night  in  his  uncle's
 house.  Something  had  happened
 there.  That  is  why  his  Dhoti  and
 Banian  was  found  somewhere  else.
 He  happened  to  wear  a  lungi.  Other-
 wise.  from  which  place  from  where  his
 lungi  came.  All  these  things  go  to
 show  that  actually  Shanmugam  was
 brought  to  help  the  investigation  as  an
 approver.  That  is  why  he  was  given
 full  freedom.  Otherwise.  the  police
 have  to  explain  how  he  escaped.  (/n-
 terruptions).  In  this  connection,  का
 own  experience  in  my  Constituency  is
 very  very  relevant.  As  you  know  on
 21st  May,  Rajiv  Gandhi  was  assassina-
 ted,  on  22nd  and  23rd  onwaids.  the
 Congress  (I)  people  in  their  election
 propaganda  said  the  first  accused  is
 Shri  V.  P.  Singh,  secoad  accused  is
 Shri  Karunanidhi  and  the  tਂ  iid  ac-
 eused  is  Shri  EMS  Namboodripad.
 This  was  the  approach  of  the  Congress
 immediately  after  the  assassination  of
 Rajiv  Gandhi.  This  is  the  real  thing.
 Now,  Congress  (1)  did  not  want  to

 come  to  the  truth  about  Indira  Gandhi
 assassination  and  Congress  (I)  does

 hot  want  to  find  the  truth  regarding
 Rajiv  Gandhi’s  assassination..  This  is

 Ty  -point.  (Interruptions).
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 So,  my  submission  is  that  in  the
 death  of  Shanmugam,  everything  is
 fishy  and  Home  Minister  shoukd  come
 forward  to  clear  the  doubts  in  the
 minds  of  the  Members.  With  this  sub-
 mission  J  suggest  that  the  scope  of
 enquiry  must  be  expanded  to  find  out
 the  real  truth.

 [Translation]
 Shri  Vijay  Kumar  Yadav:  (Na-

 landa)  :  Mr.  Chairman,  Sir,  it  is  a
 very  unfortunate  matter  for  the  coun-
 try  and  the  manner,  in  which  the
 Central  Government  is  conducting  the
 investigations,  shows  that  they  are  not
 as  much  serious  as  they  should  have
 been  in  this  regard.  The  most  con-
 spicuous  example  of  it  is  the  way  the
 enquiry  into  the  assassination  of  Shri-
 mati  Indira  Gandhi  was  handled.
 People  of  this  country  were  kept  in
 the  dark  as  to  who  were  the  real
 culprits  behind  the  assassination  and
 what  did  the  report  reveal,

 Mr.  Chairman  :  Sir,  common  pev-
 ple  cannot  be  involved  in  the  murder
 of  the  sitting  Prime  Minister  or  the
 would-be  Prme  Minister  of  a  country
 or  even  of  great  leaders  like  Shri  Rajiv
 Gandhi.  The  policies  pursued  by  the
 Government  of  this  country  have  also
 do  something  with  their  assassination.
 Shrimati  Indira  Gandhi  and  Shri  Rajiv
 Gandhi  carried  on  a  struggle  for  ad-
 herence  to  certain  basic  principles,
 especially  in  respect  of  foreign  affairs
 to  the  utter  dislike  of  a  cast  super
 power  and  every  citizen  of  this  country

 ‘knows  that  super  power  which  wanted
 to  let  down  Shrimati  Indira  Gandhi
 and  Shri  Rajiv  Gandhi,  but  could  not
 succeed  in  its  mission.  It  won’t  serve
 any  purpose  by  merely  saying  that
 some  super  power  or  an  external
 agency  is  involved  in  it.

 When  Shrimati  Indira  Gandhi  was
 assassinated  the  Congress  Government
 had  issued  a  similer  same  statement.  I
 don’t  know  why  does  the  Congress
 feel  afraid  of  giving  correct  informa-
 tion  to  the  people.  A  pertinent  ques-
 tion  that  arises  is  that  when  Shanmu-
 gam-had  a  history  of  being  थ  notorious
 smuggler  and  had  high  contacts  ia
 police  quarters,  why  was  he  kept  in
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 athe  bungalow.  I  think  that  the  investi-
 gating  agency  cannot  escape  their
 gesponsibility  for  the  lapse.  General-
 dy  the  criminals  are  kept  in  handcuffs
 and  shackles.  Therefore,  it  was  not
 proper  to  keep  free  such  a  notorious
 ¢eriminal,  who  was  involved  in  the
 assassination  of  such  a  great  political
 leader,  in  a  bungalow.  Anybody
 would  escape  in  such  a  situation.  In
 view  of  the  fact  that  he  had  links  even
 in  foreign  countries,  contacts  with  in-
 fluential  people.  it  was  not  very
 difficuk  to  get  him  out  of  the  police
 custody,  Therefore.  the  question  ४
 why  the  CBI  and  the  other  agency
 which  ‘were  entrusted  the  work  of
 conducting  enquiry  were  careless.  It
 ts  also  clear  that  the  Chief  of  the  CBI
 is  responsible  for  the  negligence  in  this
 matter  and  therefore  he  should  be  re-
 moved.  I  doubt  very  much  if  an
 enquiry  can  be  conducted  properly  till
 such  people  are  there.

 It  was  said  that  Shri  Kartikeyan
 is  an  efficient  and  sincere  officer.  He
 may  be  an  efficient  and  sincere  officer
 but  in  view  of  the  negligence  committ-

 ed  in  this  case,  the  enquiry  can  not  be
 conducted  properly.  unless  he  is  re-
 moved  from  his  post.  The  culprit  was
 kept  ina  Dak  Bungalow.  I  would
 like  to  know  from  the  Minister  of
 Home  Affairs  whether  police  force  was
 deployed  all  around  the  Bungalow  as  a
 precaution  any  measure  to  thwart  any

 possible  attempt  by  him  to  escape;  if
 not.  who  is  responsible  therefor  and
 what  action  has  been  taken  against
 him.  When  the  Government  says  that
 he  was  arrested  and  the  court  granted
 police  remand,  it  appears  that  he  had
 ae  some  information  on  the  basis
 of  which  a  large  number  of  incrimi-
 hating  articles  were  seized.  It  is  but
 natural  when  he  was  arrested  the
 elements  with

 whom
 he  had  links  must

 Many  more  culprits  would  be  ar८
 bended.  It  is  very  unfortunate  that  the
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 His  body  was  said  to  have  been
 sent  for  post-mortem,  but  no  reference
 has  so  far  been  made  regarding  the
 report  of  the  post-mortem.  In  the
 last  report,  the  Minister  of  Home
 Affairs  had  stated  that  the  body  was
 sent  for  post-mortem.  We  have  yet  to
 know  its  findings.  In  these  circums-
 tances,  I  would  like  to  know  when  a
 powerful  gang,  a  big  power  is  behind
 the  incident  which  wanted  to  erase  all
 evidence  what  happened  to  the  post-
 mortem  report,  who  conducted  the
 post-mortem,  one  or  more  than  one
 person.  Was  any  precaution  taken  in
 this  regard  ?  I  suspect  that  we  may
 face  the  concocted  report  corrobora-
 ting  the  concocted  story  in  this  case.
 All  the  Members  of  this  Parliament,  as
 well  as  the  whole  of  the  world  know
 that  CIA  is  such  an  agency  as  has  been
 involved  in  assassinations  of  a  num-
 ber  of  Prime-Ministers  and  Presidents.
 In  these  circumstances,  the  Minister
 of  Home  Affairs  should  make  it
 clear  as  to  which  foreign  hand  is  in-
 volved  in  it  and  what  precautions  will
 be  taken  in  this  regard  in  future.

 [English]

 Shri  Sobhanadreeswara  Rao
 Vadde  (Vijayawada):  Mr.  Chairman.
 Sir,  the  people  of  this  country  are  to
 bear  the  tragic  assassination  of  the
 former  Prime  Minister.  Close  on  the
 heels  of  it.  the  people  have  to  bear
 another  surprising  incident  where  a
 very  important  accused  in  this  assas-
 Sination  case  was  able  to  escape  from
 the  police  custody.

 Though  the  Special  Investigating
 Team  of  the  C.B.I.  has  done  a  com-
 mendable  work  to  a  great  extent  in
 unearthing  the  plot,  the  manner  in
 which  the  plot  was  implemented  and
 the  culprits  who  have  taken  part  in
 that  most  heinous  crime,  this  is  a  very
 very  serious  lapse.  One  cannot  really
 believe—more  so  understand——how
 this  has.  happened.  The  hon.  Home
 Minister  himself  has  stated  in  his
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 action  has  been  taken  against  this  well-
 known  smuggler  who  had  been  in  the
 smuggling  operations  since  a  very  long
 time  and  got  enriched  so  much  with
 these  operations.  It  appears  that  he
 was  a  very  key  personality  in  continu-
 ing  the  links  of  the  LTTE  with  several
 people  in  that  part  of  our  country.

 It  is  told  that  two  police  con-
 stables  were  suspended.  I  wonder
 very  much.  While  a  DIG.  a  SP  and
 a  DSP  were  all  there,  these  petty  small
 police  constables  only  were  penalised
 for  their  lapses;  because  they  are  just
 constables,  these  higher-ups  could  lay
 their  hands  on  them.

 Shri  Nirmal  Kanti  Chatterjee
 (Dum  Dum):  It  could  never  be
 underestimated.  They  rocked  a  Minis-
 try—two  constables  only.

 Shri  Sobhanadrceswara  Rao
 Vadde :  The  DIG  who  was  very  much
 present  and  the  SP  who  was  very  much
 present  in  that  bungalow,  are  they  not
 responsible  for  these  lapses?  It  is
 because  of  this  carelessness  or  laxity
 that  person  was  able  to  go  out  from
 that  Inspection  Bungalow,  and  the  next
 day  he  was  found  hanging  from  the
 tree.  I  would  like  to  have  a  clarifica-
 tion  from  the  hon.  Home  Minister  that
 after  Shanmugham  had  left  the  Inspec-
 tion  Bungalow  whether  attempts  were
 made  to  find  out  from  his  father-in-
 law’s  house  whether  he  had  been  to
 that  place.  Mr.  Chairman,  Sir,  when
 a  sniper  dog  was  utilised  in  this  search
 operation,  it  went  to  the  father-in-law’s
 house  first  and  from  there  it  went  to
 that  mango  tree  where  his  body  was
 found  hanging.  Let  the  hon.  Home
 Minister  clarify  on  this  during  his
 reply.

 Sir,  it  is  not  the  first  time  that
 such  a  very  very  serious  lapse  has
 taken  place.  I  will  recollect  a  very
 very  serious  lapse  which  had  taken
 place  on  2nd  October  1986.  When  the

 present  Rashtrapati  and  the  then  Prime
 Minister  Shri  Rajiv  Gandhi  and  seve-
 ral  other  dignitaries  went  to  Rajghat
 to-pay  their  homage  to  our  Bapuji  on

 thet  day,  a  person  by  name  Karanjit
 Singh  tried  to  assault  the  Prime  Minis
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 ter  by  using  a  country-made  gun.  You.
 will  remember  that  in  spite  of  all  the
 very  very  elaborate  security  arrange-
 ments,  there  were  so  many  special
 cadets  or  black  cats  and  what  not,
 there  were  so  many  cadets  in  these
 security  forces,  but  none  of  them  tried
 to  find  out  whether  somebody  was
 there  in  the  bush.  He  had  hidden
 there  and  he  tried  to  kill  the  then.
 Prime  Minister.  When  he  was  inter-
 rogated  as  to  why  he  had  done  this’
 thing,  he  said,  ‘So  many  of  our  Sikhs,
 thousands  of  our  Sikhs,  were  killed
 after  Madam  Gandhi's  assassination
 in  Dethi.  I  wanted  to  retaliate’.  That
 was  the  reply  given  by  Karamjit
 Singh.  What  I  want  to  bring  to  your
 kind  notice  is,  this  type  of  very  serious
 lapses  are  taking  place  now  and  then
 which  are  costing  very  dearly.  Sa,
 Sir.  ।  would  seek  a  clarification  from
 the  hon.  Minister  on  this.  Mr.  Shanmu-
 gham.  as  my  friends  have  said;
 surrendered  himself  to  the  police.  He
 was  not  caught  by  the  SIT  or  the
 police.  He  himself  surrendered  and  he
 expressed  the  apprehension  of  danger
 to  his  life  and  to  the  lives  of  the
 members  of  his  family.  When  that  is
 the  situation,  how  this  man  was  allow-
 ed  to  go  out  singlehanded  ?  And,  Sir,
 if  he  really  wanted  to  commit  suicide,
 he  would  not  have  surrendered  himself
 to  the  police.  If  it  was  a  homicide  or
 somebody  killing  him,  then  there  must
 be  a  very  big  reason  for  that  because
 this  man  was  a  very  pivotal  person.
 Sir,  he  was  given  the  title  of  ‘Com-
 mander’  by  Shri  Pirabhakaran  and  the
 LTTE.  There  were  some  instances
 when  Shri  Pirabhakaran  addressed
 some  letters  to  this  man  Shanmugham
 calling  him  as  ‘Commander’.  When
 that  was  the  vital  role  played  by  this
 Shanmugam,  tow  careful  was  SIT  or
 CBI  team  that  was  there  with  him  ?,
 So,  I  would  like  to  have  a  clear
 clarification  from  the  hon.  Home
 Minister  to  take  this  House  into  con-
 fidence  and  please  come  out  with  the
 facts  and  let  this  country  not  have  an

 agony  that  already  we  lost  the  former
 Prime  Minister  and  now  it  appears
 there  are  very  strong  hidden  hands  who
 are  able  to  even  deal  with  this  investi-~
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 gation,  and  people  have  lot  of  doubts
 about  what  will  be  the  outcome  of  this
 investigation.  a

 So,  I  request  the  hon.  Homo
 Minister  to  come  out  clearly  and
 Clarify  all  the  doubts  that  have  been
 expressed.

 _..  Mr.  Chairman:  The  time  of  the
 Sitting  was  extended  till  7.00  p.m.  and
 still a.  number  of  Members  want  to

 am  this  subject.  As  only  20
 बिस  are  left,  I  will  have  to  ask  the

 ्  ‘Minister  to  reply  now,  unless
 the.  hon.  Members  want  to  extend  the
 time  further.

 Shri  E.  _Ahamad  (Manjeri) :  Sir.
 all  the  parties  should  be  given  an

 rtunity  to  speak  on  this  subject.
 (interruptions).

 Shri  Guman  Mal  Lodha  (Pali) :
 Sit,  the  time  may  be  extended.  (Inter-
 ruptions).

 [Translation]

 Shri  Daz  Dayal  Joshi  (Kota):
 Mr.  Chairman,  Sir,  no  member  of  the
 Bhartiya  Janata  Party  has  got  a
 chance to  speak,  hence.  I  may  be
 allowed to  speak.

 Mr.  Chairman :  ।  member  of  the
 Janata  Party  has  already

 How  do  you  say  that  none
 has  got  a  chance.  Shri  Ram  Naik  has
 spoken  and  one  member  of  each  party
 has  done  sa.

 Shri  Rajeath  Sonkar  Shastri
 @Gaidper): This  is  not  the  question  of
 one  member  of  each  party to  speak.
 This  issue  is  a  very  important  issue,
 so  all  those,  who  want  to  speak.
 should  be  given  a  chance.  If  there  is
 no  time  to-day.  you  may  postpone  it

 for  to-morrow.

 Miz.  Chairman:  I
 =

 say
 about  tomorrow’s  programme  but  I  am

 prepared  to  sit  as  long  as  you  want  to

 Shel  Rejasth  Seukar  Ghustd:  We
 may  ott  late  f  it  is  required.
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 Shri  Dan  Dayal  Joshi:  Please

 postpone  it  till  tomorrow  as  it  is  an
 important  discussion.  The  hon.  Minjs-
 ter  may  reply  tomorrow.  (Interrup-
 tions).

 [Engtish}

 Mr.  Chairman:  Shall  we  extend
 the  time  by  15  minutes  or  half-an-
 hour  ?

 The  Minister  of  Home  Affairs
 (Shri  S.  B.  Chavan):  Sir,  I  have  got
 an  appointment  at  7.30  p.m.  I  cannot
 force  the  House  because  of  my
 appointment,  but  at  the  same  time,  I
 am  expressing  my  difficulty.

 Mr.  Chairman:  All  I  can  say  is
 that  the  hon.  Home  Minister  will
 make  his  reply  sharp  at  7.00  p.m.
 Will  that  suit  vou”?

 Shri  5  B.  Chavan:  Yes  (Inter-
 ruptions).

 Shr  Gumar  Mal  Lodha:  Sir.  till
 now,  he  has  not  placed  the  post-
 mortem  report  on  the  Table  of  the
 House:  the  inquest  report  is  not  avail-
 able  and  we  do  not  know  whether  it
 is  a  suicide  or  homicide.

 Mr.  Chairman:  Leave  it  to  the
 Home  Minister.  (/nterruptions).

 Shri  Pius  .Tirkey  (Aiipurduar) :
 Sir,  ।  am  on  a  point  of  order.  I  want
 to  share  this  information  which  has
 come  from  the  Prime  Minister’s  office.
 I  want  to  read  the  letter.  (Interrup-
 tions).

 Mr.  Chairman :  There  is  no  point
 of  order.  (Interruptions).

 [Translation]

 Shri  Rajnath  Sonkar  Shastri:

 Are  you  not  going to  permit us  to
 speak,  Sir?

 Mr.  Chairman:  Within the  sche-
 duled  time  limit.  ...(/nterruptions).

 Shri  Rajasth  Sonker  Shastri:
 The  time  has  just-been  extended  by
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 to  you.  The  whole  House  is  request-
 ing  you  to  extend  the  time  because
 each  of  us  has  to  submit  some  new
 points  about  this  important  issue  and
 you  are  not  allowing  us.

 Mr.  Chairman:  Mr.  Sonkar,  you
 may  say  whatever  you  like.  But  do
 not  attribute  thing,  to  me  as  I  am  say-
 ing  that  I  am  ready  to  sit  here  upto
 10  p.m.  But  the  Home  Minister  has
 to  attend  an  important  meeting  at
 7.3  pm.  And  for  tomorrow,  I  can
 only  request  the  hon.  Speaker.

 Shri  Rajnath  Sonkar  Shastri:
 The  hon.  Home  Minister  should  listen
 to  our  submissions  first.  He  should
 give  his  reply  only  when  all  of  us  have
 spoken.  ...(/nterruptions).

 [English]

 Shri  Basudev  Acharia  (Ban
 kera)  :  Mr.  Chairman,  Sir,  the  inquiry
 report  and  the  post-mortem  report
 should  be  placed  on  the  Table  of  the
 House.

 Mr.  Chairman:  Kindly  sit  down
 The  Home  Minister  has  got  the  floor.

 Shri  5.  छि,  Chavan:  If  you  agree.
 you  may  allow  the  Members  to  speak
 up  to  7-30  pm.  I  will  give  the  reply
 tomorrow.  (Interruptions).

 Mr.  Chairman:  Wohosvever's
 name  is  there.  I  will  allow  to  speak.
 But  I  will  go  according  to  the  list  up
 before  me.

 Kindly  restrict  your  time  to  5  mi-
 nutes  each  so  that  everybody  gets  the
 time  to  speak.  (Interruptions).

 Mr.  Chairman:  No.  Please  sit
 down.  You  are  only  wasting  the  time
 of  the  House.  Shri  Rajaraviverma.

 Shri  B.  Rajaravivarma  (Polla-
 chi):  Mr.  Chairman,  the  statement  of
 the  hon.  Home  Minister  made  in  the
 House  on  the  issue  of  the  death  of
 Shri  Shanmugam  is  totally  unbeliev-
 able.  Shanmugam,  an  accused  in  the

 assassination  of  the  fortner  Prime
 Minister,  Shri  Rejivy  Gandhi  and  he
 भ  voluntarily  to  the  police

 23—190  L.S.S.ND/91
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 एव  17-9-1991.  It  was  not  that  the  CBT
 or  SIT  caught  him.  Therefore,  it  is  not
 at  all  believable  that  he  escaped  on
 19-7-1991  and  committed  suicide  just
 two  days  after  surrender.  If  he  wanted
 to  escape  from  the  issue,  there  was  no
 question  of  his  voluntary  surrender
 and  then  escaping  and  committing
 suicide.  So,  we  want  to  know  whe-
 ther  it  is  a  suicide  or  homicide.

 When  Shanmugam  was  washing
 his  hands,  the  constables  were  not
 around  him.  They  were  supplying
 food  for  the  CBI  and  SIT  officials.  I
 would  like  to  know  that  the  State
 police  who  had  been  posted  there  were
 meant  to  keep  a  watch  on  Shanmugam
 or  to  serve  food  for  the  CBI  and  SIT
 officials.  The  services  of  our  State
 police  had  been  misused  by  the  CBI
 and  SIT  officials.

 It  is  stated  that  Shanmugam  es-
 caped  under  the  cover  of  darkness.
 The  question  of  darkness  could  come
 only  after  Shanmugam  escaping  from
 the  building.  Therefore,  ।  strongly
 suspect  the  role  played  by  the  CBI  and
 SIT  officials  behind  this  issue.

 The  Tourist  Bungalow  at  Vada-
 ranyam  in  Thanjavur  district  where
 the  accused  Shanmugam  was  under
 arrest  is  having  all  facilities  like  wash
 basin  and  bath  rooms  within  the  pre-
 mises.  Then,  how  had  Shanmugam
 been  allowed  to  go  outside  to  wash  his
 hands  ?

 We  feel  surprised  that  how  an
 accused  under  the  custody  could  have
 a  15  feet  rope  with  him  with  which  he
 was  reported  to  have  hanged  himself?

 By  the  by,  he  was  not  accustomed
 to  wearing  lungi,  even  then  how  lungi
 was  found  at  the  site  ?

 Sir,  is  it  true  that  his  feet  were

 touching  the  ground  while  hanging ?
 If  so,  how  can  anybody  hang  himself
 like  that  ?

 I  want  to  ask  the  hon.  Hone
 Minister,  through  you,  why  the  post-
 mortem  was  done  at  Nagapattinam
 General  Hospital  instead  of  teaching
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 medical  institution  at  the  Tanjavur
 Medical  College  which  is  equi  distant
 from  Vedaranyam  and  where  there  are
 latest  sophisticated  instruments  and
 forensic  experts  available  to  pronounce
 an  expert  opinion  ?

 Has  the  post  mortem  concluded
 that  asphyxation  is  due  to  hanging  or
 otherwise  ?  Moreover,  is  it  true  that
 the  place  in  which  he  was  found  hang-
 ing  also  belongs  to  a  private  individual
 who  is  in  any  way  connected  with  the
 smuggling  activities?  The  Home
 Minister  says  that  he  himself  is  not
 satisfied  with  the  replies  and  the  re-
 ports  furnished  by  the  officials  of  SIT.

 What  is  the  nature  of  the  suspi-
 cion?  Will  you  take  this  House  in
 confidence  by  informing  the  same  ?

 The  officials  who  are  responsible
 for  this  incident  should  be  identified
 and  they  must  be  enquired  first,  before
 Shivarajan.

 With  this  I  conclude.

 Shri  Guman  Mal  Lodha  (Pali):
 Mr.  Chairman,  I  am  very  sorry  to  say
 that  our  debating  this  matter  in  the
 absence  of  a  post-mortem  report  and
 inquest  report  showing  the  cause  of
 death,  is  just  like  constructing  a  bridge
 where  there  is  no  water  and  where

 there  is  only  sand.  (/nterruptions).

 The  first  important  bedrock  for
 such  a  matter  to  be  discussed  is  that
 the  Members  must  know  what  is  the
 cause  of  that,  according  to  the  medical
 report  in  the  post-mortem  report  and
 the  inquest  report  which  is  done,  under
 the  Cr.P.C.,  immediately  after  death.
 Both  these  documents  are  very  vital
 and  are  the  bedrock  for  any  inquiry  or
 discussion  or  debate  or  dialogue.  Un-
 fortunately,  in  spite  of  time  being
 granted,  in  spite  of  the  fact  that  a
 statement  has  been  made  by  hon.
 Home  Minister,  both  these  documents
 are  missing and  unless they  are  seen,
 it  cannot  be  said  whether  it  is  a  case
 of  suicide  or  homicide.

 It  isa  very  important  matter
 again  which  requires  examination.  In
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 the  statement  which  was  given  by  the
 hon.  Home  Minister,

 it  is  written

 [Translation]
 [English]

 There  were  some  stains  of  semen.
 What  is  this?  It  gives  very  new
 dimensions.  The  whole  thing  is  my-
 sterious.  What  is  this  semen  in  the
 underwear  of  the  deceased?  What
 does  it  hint  at?  Was  it  superimposed
 under  mysterious  circumstances?  The
 whole  thing  is  shrouded  in  mystery
 that  it  appears  that  there  is  a  great
 conspiracy  to  kill  him  and  to  remove
 evidence  so  that  the  actual  conspiracy
 is  not  unfolded.

 According  to  the  experience  of  the
 persons  who  are  here,  hon.  Members
 have  remained  in  jail  for  a  long  time.
 I  have  remained  in  jail  half-a-dozen
 times  or  more.  Nowhere  in  the  night.
 an  under-trial  or  a  person  is  taken
 out  of  the  barracks  or  place  even  for
 having  urination  or  for  answering  the
 call  of  nature.  There  is  a  place  pro-
 vided  inside  for  this  purpose.  How
 can  such  a  dangerous  person  who  was
 the  prime  suspect,  who  came  with  a
 confession.  such  a  serious  witness,  be
 left  out  and  there  also,  they  say  in  the
 darkness  he  just  went  out.

 Mr.  Chairman:  Probably  there
 was  no  urinal  inside  there.

 Shri  Guman  Mal  Lodha:  They
 say  nearabout  this  bungalow  or  guest
 house,  there  was  a  dry  canal  in  which
 two  clothes  were  found  of  the  deceas-
 ed.  What  is  this?  Near  about  the
 guest  house,  two  clothes  were  found,  a
 dhoti  and  a  banian.  What  does  this
 mean?  That  particular  incident  of
 murder  took  place  inside  the  dak
 bungalow  or  the  guest  house  or  im-
 mediately  after,  outside  it  and  in  a

 very  planned  manner,  by  persons  who
 were  serious  criminals  or  experts  in
 the  case  of  murder  and  in  eliminating
 evidenca.

 My  submission  is  that  the  whole
 thing  is  shrouded  in  great  mystery  and
 it  is  a  very  seriuos  matter.  It  must
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 be  talked  about,  discussed,  debated
 and  dialogued  in  the  House  after  these
 two  documents,  the  inquest  report  and
 the  post-mortem  report  are  disclosed.

 I  would  also  request  that  a  Medi-
 cal  Board  should  be  set  up  in  order
 to  find  out  what  is  the  implication  of
 this  chemical  report  about  the  semen,
 whether  it  was  taken  or  not  and,  if  so,
 what  is  the  relevance  of  it.

 Similarly.  the  first  important
 thing  to  be  ascertained  is  whether  it
 was  acase  of  suicide  oracase  of
 homicide.  This  must  be  done  by  ex-
 perts  of  Medical  Board  who  must  be
 detached  and  independent  persons.
 Unless  that  is  put  before  the  House.
 my  respectful  submission  is  that  our
 entire  debate  is  just  like  constructing
 a  bridge  where  there  is  no  water.

 Mr.  Chairman:  Next.  Shri  Pius
 Tirkey  to  speak.

 Shri  Pius  Tirkey  (Alipurduar) :
 Sir,  I  have  got  a  very  important  letter
 addressed  to  the  then  Prime  Minister
 Shri  Chandra  Shekhar.  dated  the  23rd
 November.  1990.  The  address  of  the
 letter  reads  :  49,  Western  Court.  New
 Delhi.  It  was  addressed  to  the  Prime
 Minister  Shri  Chandra  Shekhar.  New
 Delhi.

 Mr.  Chairman:  Shri  Pius  Tirkey.
 what  are  you  reading  from  ?

 Shri  Pius  Tirkey :  This  is  a  letter
 Written  to  the  Prime  Minister.  It  is
 exactly  related  to  this  case.  I  have
 received  this  letter.

 Shri  A.  Charles:  Will  you  give
 &  copy  of  that  letter  ?

 Shri  Pius  Tirkey  :  Yes.  (/nterrup-
 tions).

 Mr.  Chairman:  Shri  Pius  Tirkey,
 this  letter  is  from  whom?  Who  is  it

 eee
 to?  Isit  an  authenticated

 Que

 (nterruptions)
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 Shri  Pius  Tirkey  :  ।  am  going  to
 read  it  out.  It  is  well  connected  with
 this  case.  It  says:  Dear  Prime  Minis-
 ter,  Yesterday  I  went  to  the  Indira
 Gandhi  International  Airport...

 Shri  A.  Charles:  Sir,  Iam  ona
 point  of  order.  Unless  a  paper  is  laid
 on  the  Table  of  the  House,  how  can
 he  quote  ?  It  should  be  authenticated.
 I  want  aruling  on  this.  He  has  to
 authenticate  it.

 Shri  Pius  Tirkey:  I  am  going  to
 quote  only  three  or  four  lines.  That  is
 all.  (Interruptions).

 Shri  Basu  Deb  Acharia:
 name  is  not  there.  Don’t  worry.

 Your

 Shrii  Pius  Tirkey:  The  letter
 reads  like  this  :  Dear  Prime  Minister,
 Yesterday  I  went  to  the  Indira  Gandhi
 International  Airport  to  receive  a  fri-
 end  from  Birmingham.  Among  the
 VIPs.  one  was  Shri  Musurath  Iqbal.  I
 knew  him  from  my  Birmingham  days.
 (Interruptions).

 Mr.  Chairman:  Shri  Pius  Tirkey.
 please  listen.  If  you  are  reading  out
 from  some  documents,  you  must
 authenticate  that  document  and  give  a
 copy  before  you  quote.

 Shri  Pius  Tirkey:  1  am  quoting
 it  to  find  out  whether  it  is  true  or  not.
 The  Home  Minister  is  here.

 Mr.  Chairman:  Some  document
 you  are  reading  out  which  is  addressed
 to  Shri  Chandra  Shekhar.  How  can
 the  Home  Minister  say  whether  it  is
 correct  or  not.  You  have  to  authen-
 ticate  that  as  to  whether  from  your
 knowledge  you  can  say  that  that  docu-
 ment  is  a  correct  document  or  not.

 (Interruptions)

 Shri  Pius  Tirkey:  It  has  been
 written  here  and  the  signature  is  also
 here.  It  has  been  informed  that  the
 same  gang  was  involved  in  the  assas-
 sination  of  Shrimati  Indira  Gandhi.

 (Interruptions).

 Mr.  Chairmara:  You  must  know
 one  thing.  Please  sit  down  when  I  am
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 qa  my  legs.  I  would  request  hon.  19.6  hrs.
 Members  that  if  you  read  out’  a

 locument,  it  is  not  up  to  the  Home
 Minister  to  authenticate  that  docu-
 ment.  You  know  the  source  of  the
 document.  You  know  from  where
 you  got  it.  You  know  whether  it  is
 an  authenticated  one  or  not.  If  it  is
 true  or  if  you  have  doubts  about  the
 correctness  of  that  document,  the
 person  who  is  reading  it  out  can  only
 say  that.  You  have  to  know  that.
 You  cannot  expect  the  Home  Minister
 to  authenticate  the  document.  So,  it
 is  your  responsibility  to  authenticate
 that  document.  If  you  are  convinced
 that  it  is  a  correct,  true  document,  then
 by  all  means  I  allow  you  to  read  it
 out.  Now,  you  have  to  say  that  you
 are  satisfied  about  the  correctness  of
 the  document.

 Shri  Pius  Tirkey  :  1  will  lay  it  on
 the  Table  of  the  House.

 Mr.  Chairman:  You  have  tv  say
 whether  you  are  satisfied  or  not.

 Shri  Pius  Tirkey:  Yes.  ।
 satisfied.  (Interruptions).

 Shri  5.  B.  Chavan:  Let  him  first
 authenticate  it,  put  it  on  the  Table  of
 the  House.  Without  that,  I  don’t
 think  merely  because  he  is  saying  that
 it  is  correct,  he  can  quote  it.  (/nterrup-
 tions).

 Mr.  Chairman:  Please  sit  down.
 Hon.  Members.  I  will  read  out  the
 concerned  rule  from  the  ‘Directions  by
 the  Speaker’,  Rule  118A  which  says  :

 “When  a  Member  seeks  permis-
 sion  of  the  Speaker  to  lay  a  paper
 or  document  on  the  Table  of  the
 House  under  direction  118,  he
 shall  record  thereon  a_  certificate
 in  one  of  the  following  forms,  as
 the  case  may  be  :-

 (a)  ‘I  certify  from  my  _per-
 sonal  knowledge  that
 this  is  the  original  docu-
 ment  which  is  authentic.’

 (b)  ‘I  certify  from  my  per-
 sonal  knowledge  that
 this  document  is  a  true
 copy  of  the  original
 which  is  authentic.’

 am

 If  you  are  prepared  to  give  one  of
 these  certificates  and  lay  it  on  the
 Table  of  the  House,  then  you  can  read
 out  that  document.  Otherwise,  I  am
 sorry,  I  cannot  allow  you  to  read  out
 this  from  the  document.

 (Interruptions)

 Shri  Ram  Naik:  1  am  on  a  point
 of  order.  It  is  7  O’clock.  The  time
 of  the  House  should  be  extended.

 Mr.  Chairman:  There  is  no  point
 of  order.  Time  has  been  extended.
 Extension  of  time  is  no  point  of  order.

 (Interruptions)

 Shri  Pius  Tirkey:  The  then
 Prime  Minister  Shri  Chandra  Shekhar
 was  informed  on  the  23rd  November
 through  a  letter  by  somebody  that  the
 Birmingham  gang,  the  most  notorious
 gang.  was  being  supported  by  some
 sections  of  the  police  and  the  Govern-
 ment.  And  it  has  been  apprehended
 that  the  same  gang  was  involved  in
 Shrimati  Gandhi’s  assassination  also.
 It  is  very  much  likely  that  the  same
 gang  has  arrived  now.  This  informa-
 tion  was  given  to  the  Prime  Minister
 through  a  letter  cautioning  him  to
 beware  of  this  Musrut  Iqbal  Gang.
 This  gang  was  given  a  VIP  treatment
 from  the  Airport  onwards.  And  those
 who  were  looking  after  the  gang  were
 some  police  officers  and  Ministers.  We
 suspect  that  this  gang  has  done  this
 repeated  killing  of  Shri  Rajiv  Gandhi.
 I  do  not  know  why  the  Government  is
 so  much  afraid  of  this  gang  when  they
 are  having  so  much  of  military  and
 police  force.  Ido  not  know  what
 kind  of  arrangement  this  Government
 has  with  this  gang.  They  have  not
 caught  even  a  single  member  of  this
 gang.  This  gang  is  perhaps,  still
 operating  in  India.  In  the  case  of
 Shrimati  Gandhi,  poor  sikhs  were  kill-
 ed  and  sikhs  were  suspected  to  be
 involved  in  the  case.  In  this  case,
 LTTE  is  to  be  involved.  I
 say  that  the  LTTE  should  not  be
 found  guilty  and  accused  of  on  this
 count  by  saying  that  LTTE  has  done
 it.  ह  want  to  know  whether  the  Home
 Minister  is  aware  of  this  Musrut  Iqbal
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 Gang  of  Birmingham  who  is  operating
 in  India.  I  would  like  to  know  whe-
 ther  the  Minister  will  take  stringent
 step  from  today  onwards  itself  in  this
 regard.

 Shri  5.  8.  Chavaa:  What  is  the
 name  that  you  mentioned  ?

 Shri  Pius  Tirkey:  It  is  the  Mus-

 म  Iqbal  Gang,  Birmingham.

 ~  1]  8.  Ahamed  (Manjeri):  Mr.
 Chairman,  Sir,  1  thank  you  for  calling
 me  to  speak.  Shri  Rajiv  (सात111%5
 murder  case  ४  a  heinous,  gruesome
 crime  of  the  century.  This  can  be
 eompared  only  to  the  assassination  of
 Mr.  ‘Kennedy  and  that  of  Shrimati
 Indira  Gandhi.  Much  has  been  said
 about  Shri  Shanmugam’s  alleged:  (05-
 tody  and  escape  and  later  his  suicide
 or  homicide,  whatever  we  may  call  it.
 But  I  might  say  that  Government
 should  view  the  entire  case  in  its
 totality.  There  were  lapses.  There
 Were  omissions  and  commissions  on
 the  part  of  several  agencies.  I  may
 just  invite  the  attention  of  the  House
 t6  the  lapses  which  ।  (81  put  into
 three  categories;  one  is  the  disgraceful
 behaviour  of  the  policemen  at  Sri-
 perumbudur  on  the  fateful  night.  1८
 was  reported  that  the  policemen  have
 fled  away  from  the  scence.  To  them
 life  was  dearer  than  duty.  Had  the
 li  heroes  remained  there’  the
 “kurta  villainsਂ  would  not  have  escap-
 ed  and  they  could  have  been  appre-
 hended.  It  was  a  serious  lapse  on
 the  part  of  the  police  who  were  on
 duty  and  taking  into  consideration  of
 the  fact  that  they  were  in  charge  of  the
 security  of  a  /2'  category  personality.

 Secondly.  the  laxity  on  the  part  of
 the  police  from  taking  care  of  the
 camera  left.  behind  by  Haribabu,  the
 photographer  who  was  killed  in  the
 incident  at  the  scene.  Thanks  to
 Hindu  newspaper  and  Frontline  maga-
 zine,  the  people  were  able  to  see  those
 photographs  after  it  has  been-  seized
 t४  the  CBI.  16  will  not  be  fair  to
 make  a  wholesale  blame  on  the  CBI.
 Some  of  the  breakthrough  that  the
 CBI  has  achieved,  as  rightly  pointed
 o  by  my  hon.  friends,  were  really
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 commendable  which  cannot  be  lost

 sight  of.  But  at  the  very  same  time
 some  of  the  actions  taken  by  the  local

 police  and  also  the  subsequent  events
 have  led  us  to  believe  that  there  were

 lapses,  commissions  and  omissions  on
 the  part  of  the  investigating  agencies.

 The  third  and  the  most  surprising
 lapse  according  to  me  is  the  Shan-

 mugam  case.  Many  of  my  friends.
 have  dealt  with  it  in  detail;  so  I  don’t.

 go  into  the  details.  One  factor  ।  just
 would  like  to  remind  the  Home  Minis-
 ter  is  that  Shanmugam  is  reported  to
 have  given  the  names  of  some  of  the

 police  officials  who  were  hands.  in

 glove  with  the  persons  involved  in
 some  undesirable  and  illegal  activities
 that  were  taking  place  in  Tamilnadu.
 That  might  be  one  of  the  causes  for
 what  actually  happened  there.  We
 are  not  the  only  people  concerned
 about  Shanmugam’s  escape.  ।  The

 very  enquiry  ordered  by  the  Govern-
 ment  according  to  me  is  a  matter  of
 concern  for  the’  people  of  the  whole
 country.  May  I  just.invite  the  atten-
 tion  of  the  hon.  Home  Minister  to  the
 notifications  15806जी on  27th  May.  1991

 appointing  the  Verma  Commission  ?
 Later  our  Prime  Minister  has  assured
 in  Hyderabad  that  the  scope  of  the

 enquiry  will  be  widened.  The  reports
 appearing  now,  as  a  matter  of  fact,  are
 all  very  much  appalling  for  a  citizen
 of  this  country.  One  report  says  that
 a  judge  has  said  something  and  later
 it  has  been  denied  by  another  report.
 Therefore  we  want  to  know,  the  6०:
 ple  want  to  know  and  the  country
 wants  to  know  as  to  what  is  that  the
 Government  going  to  do  in  the  matter
 of  Verma  Commission  of  Inquiry.

 The  two  matters  in  the  terms  of
 reference  mentioned  are  that  :

 (1)  whether  the  assassination  of
 Shri  Rajiv  Gandhi  could
 have  been  averted  and  whe-
 ther  there  were  lapses  or
 dereliction  of  duty  in  this
 regard  on  the  part  of  any  of
 the  individuals  responsible
 for  his  security;  and



 347  Discussion  Under

 (2)  deficiencies,  if  any,  in  the
 security  system  and  arrange-
 ments  as  prescribed  or  ope-~
 rated  in  practice  which  might
 have  contributed  to  the
 assassination.

 The  most  important  things  accor-
 ding  to  me  have  been  omitted  in  this.
 In  this  respect  I  would  invite  the
 attention  of  the  hon.  Home  Minister
 as  to  what  happened  after  the  assas-
 Sination  of  Kennedy  wherein  the  Exe-
 cutive  Order  issued  by  the  then
 President  of  America,  Lyndon  John-
 son  on  November  29,  1963  appointing
 the  Chief  Justice  of  America  Earl
 Warren  to  head  the  Special  Commis-
 sion  on  the  assassination  of  John  F.
 Kennedy  says  :

 “The  purposes  of  the  Commis-
 sion  are  to  examine  the  evidence
 developed  by  the  Federal  Bureau
 of  Investigation  and  any  addi-
 tional  evidence  that  may  hereafter
 come  to  light  or  be  uncovered  by
 federal  or  state  authorities;  to
 make  such  further  investigation
 as  the  Commission  finds  desir-
 able;  to  evaluate  all  the  facts  and
 circumstances  surrounding  such
 assassination  including  the  sub-
 sequent  violent  death  of  the  man
 charged  with  the  assassination...”

 The  Government  should  also  take
 the  contents  of  this  terms  of  reference
 into  consideration  which  would  de-
 finitely  be  a  guiding  principle  for  the
 Inquiry  Commission  which  enquires
 into  the  Rajiv  Gandhi  assassination
 case.

 All  these  controversies  about  the
 appointment  of  the  Commission  and
 the  reservation  reported  to  have  been
 stated  by  the  Judge  of  the  Supreme
 Court  will  be  a  matter  of  much  con-
 cern.

 Mr.  Chairman:  Please  wind  up.

 .न  E.  Ahamed:  ।  iust  wart  to

 quote  the  Warren  Commission’s  find-

 igs.

 Mr.  Chatrman:  ‘You  have  taken
 more  than  your  time.
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 Shri  E.  Ahamed:  Sir,  a  portion
 of  Warren  Commission  of  Inquiry  will
 be  very  much  useful  for  good  in  de-
 ciding  the  Commission  of  Inquiry  in
 this  case.

 The  Commission  says  :

 “The  Commission  has  functioned
 neither  as  a  Court  presiding  over
 an  adversary  proceedings  nor  as
 a  prosecutor  determined  to  prove
 a  case,  but  as  a  fact  finding
 agency  committed  to  the  ascer-
 tainment  of  the  truth.  In  the
 course  of  the  investigation  of  the
 facts  and  rumours  surrounding
 these  matters,  it  was  necessary  to
 explore  hearsay  and  other  sour-
 ces  of  information  not  admissible
 in  a  Court  proceedings  obtained
 from  persons  who  saw  or  heard
 and  others  in  a_  position  to
 observe  what  occurred”.

 In  the  light  of  these  facts,  I
 submit  before  this  House  that  what
 quoted  here  is  the  pat  case  and  this  is
 the  apt  observation:  it  will  be  very
 much  useful  in  going  through  the
 circumstances  which  led  to  the  death
 of  the  great  Indian,  undisputed  leader
 of  millions  of  this  country.  Therefore,
 I  hope  that  the  Home  Minister  will
 make  a  mention  about  this  n_  his
 reply.

 [Translation]

 Shri  Rajnath  Sonkar  Shastri
 (Saidpur):  Mr.  Chairman,  Sir.  this
 incident  is  as  shocking  as  Shri  Rajiv’s
 assassination.  The  hon.  Home  Minis-
 ter’s  statement  regarding  the  escape  of
 Shanmugam  is  very  irresponsible  one.
 Sir,  as  we  all  know  and  this  is  obvious
 from  the  Home  Méinister’s  statement
 also  that  he  was  a  notorious  smuggler.
 He  had  a  huge  stock  of  weapons  and
 he  owned  crores  of  rupees.  A  parallel
 Army  was  working  under  him.  Not
 only  this.  he  was  one  of  the  important
 LTTE  men

 a
 he  had

 a
 with

 many  political  figures.  ese  matters
 have  already  come  to  light,  so  I  would
 not  waste  time  of  the  House  by.  re-

 ferring  to  these  things.
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 A  woman  went  there  to  garland
 Shri  Rajiv.  Gandhi  and  she  assassinat-
 ed  him.  This  very  person,  Shanmugam
 was  present  there,  when  Shri  Rajiv
 Gandhi  was  killed.  And  later  on
 Shanmugam  surrendered  to  the  police.
 Now  we  would  like  to  know  from  the
 hon.  Home  Minister  as  to  whether  the
 C.B.1.  or  the  Government  was  not
 aware  that  he  was  coming  to  them  for
 surrendering  himself  or  with  some
 other  motive.  It  has  been  said  that  he
 escaped  on  the  pretext  of  washing  his
 hands.  Why  the  Police  did  not
 arrange  adequate  security  for  such  an
 important  criminal,  an  assassin.  Our
 friend  Shri  Chandra  Jeet  Yadav  has
 asked  whether  such  a  dreaded  person
 was  handcuffed  or  not.  If  not,  what
 was  the  reason  therefor  ?  It  has  been
 said  that  his  Baniyan  and  Lungi  were
 recovered  from  the  embankment  of
 the  canal  near  which  he  is  said  to  have
 committed  suicide.  Now  the  question
 does  arise  as  to  wherefrom  he  manag-
 ed  to  get  a  rope  to  hang  himself  on  the
 tree?  Thus  a  suspicion  arises  that
 the  C.B.I.  personnel,  who  are  investi-
 gating  the  case,  might  have  deliberate-
 ly  murdered  him  to  serve  their  own
 interest.  Thereafter  a  drama  _  was
 enacted.  ।  want  to  know  many  things
 from  the  hon.  Minister  but  due  to
 shortage  of  time  I  would  like  to  ask
 only  one  thing.  I  am  putting  only  one
 query  before  the  hon.  Home  Minister
 that  post-mortem  of  Shanmugam’s
 body  was  done  on  20th  and  the  hon.
 Home  Minister  reached  there  on  25th.
 T  would  like  to  know  as  to  whether
 that  post-mortem  report  was  submitted
 to  you  or  not.  Why  that  report  could
 not  be  submitted  to  you  even  when
 five  days  had  passed  ?  Why  was  post-
 mortem  performed  by  an  ordinary
 doctor  in  an  ordinary  hospital.  It
 was  a  gruesome  assassination.  When
 the  country’s  sovereignty.  democracy
 and  security  is  at  stake  then  why  was
 the  post-mortem  of  such  a  conspirator
 done  in  an  ordinary  Hospital.  I
 would  like  to  request  the  hon.  Minister
 to  give  details  of  that  post-mortem
 report  here  in  this  House.

 Sir,  one  more  thing,  this  House
 witnessed  uproarious  scenes  over
 Bofors  issue  and  ultimately  the  for-
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 mer  Prime  Minister  constituted  a
 Parliamentary  Committee  to  inquire
 into  the  issue.  This  issue  is  in  no  way
 less  important  than  that  of  the  Bofors.
 So,  will  the  hon.  Home  Minister  con-
 stitute  any  such  Parliamentary  Com-
 mittee  to  enquire  into  this  issue  ?  Sir,
 a  few  days  ago  I  had  gone  to  Vara-
 nasi  where  I-came  to  know  that
 Sivrasan  who  was  wanted  in  this  case
 had  stayed  there  for  two  days  and  the
 local  police  was  very  much  aware  of
 it.  There  is  a  South  Indian  Hotel  at
 Bhelupura  where  he  stayed  for  some
 time.  The  police  knew  about  this  but
 they  did  not  take  any  initiative  and
 he  got  a  chance  to  flee.  He  got  down
 from  the  train  at  Raipur  Station  of
 Madhya  Pradesh  but  the  local  police
 did  not  take  any  interest.  He  could
 not  be  apprehended  by  the  police  at
 any  of  the  places  i.e.  Varanasi.  Karna-
 taka,  Raipur  where  he  was  seen.  Is
 there  no  possibility  of  our  police  be-
 ing  involved  in  this  particular  case  ?
 We  do  not  like  to  suspect  our  police
 but  such  sordid  incidents  compel  us  to
 think  in  that  direction  ?

 Mr.  Chairman:  I  think  you
 should  not  level  charges  against  the
 police.

 Shri  Rajnath  Sonxar  Shastri:  I
 demand  constitution  of  a  Parliamen-
 tary  Committee  to  inquire  into  this
 case  and  the  progress  in  the  investiga-
 tions  should  be  closely  monitored
 leaving  no  chance  for  any  laxity.
 Does  the  C.B.I.  not  come  under  sus-
 picion  as  despite  there  being  so  many
 senior  officers  he  succeeded  in  commit-
 ting  suicide?  If  the  role  of  the  C.B.I.
 is  under  cloud,  why  can  we  not  doubt
 the  action  of  the  provincial  police.
 I,  therefore,  request  the  hon.  Minister
 to  give  clearly  all  the  details  in  this
 regard  in  the  House.  He  should  pay
 attention  to  this  issue  which  is  con-
 cerned  with  the  unity  and  integrity  of
 our  country  so  that  there  is  no  recur-
 rence  of  such  incidents  in  the  country.

 (English]

 Mr.  Chairman:  ।  have  received
 a  request  from  honourable  Dr.  (Mrs.)
 Padma  that  she  belongs  to  the  same
 place  as  of  Shanmugam.
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 Shri  Manoranian  Bhakta  (Anda-

 man-Nicobar):  |  have  also  sent  a

 request.

 Mr.  Chairman:  Your  name  is
 much  down.

 (Interruptions)

 Mr.  Chairman:  ।  have  gone
 according  to  the  list.  I  have  made  a
 deviation  only  in  the  case  of  Dr.
 Padma  because  she  belongs  to  the
 place  from  where  Shanmugam  came.
 Now,  Dr.  Padma,  please  finish  your
 speech  in  five  minutes.

 ‘Dr.  (Smt)  Padma’  =  (Naganatti-
 mam):  Mr.  Chairman  Sir.  since  al!
 other  hon.  Members  have  spoken
 much  about  the  death  of  Shanmugam,
 I  do  not  want  to  waste  the  time  of  the
 House  by  repeating  the  points  made

 ‘by  them.  Moreover.  I  am  told  that  the
 Minister  has  to  attend  a  function.

 As  a  doctor.  I  would  like  to  say
 that  it  would  -have  been  better  if  the
 body  of  Shanmugam  would  have  been
 sent  to  a  teaching  institution  for  post-
 mortem.  So  far  as  the  post-mortem
 report  is  concerned.  to  know  whether
 it  is  homicide  or  suicide.  have  they
 taken  the  X-ray  of  the  hvoid  bone  or
 preserved  the  hvoid  bone  ?  These  are
 the  points  on  which  1  would  like  to
 know.

 Shri  K.  Ramamurthee  ।  Tindi-
 vanam  (Tindivanam:  Sir,  1.  will
 make  a  very  brief  speech  It  is
 shameful  for  us  to  discuss  about  the
 disaster  which  has_  taken  place—the
 assassination  of  a  great  leader  who  had
 led  the  country  with  confidence  and
 who  gave  the  younger  generation  of
 the  country  the  biggest  confidence  in
 life.  So  far  as  the  investigation  part
 is  concerned,  T  will  speak  point  by
 point.

 Shanmugam  had  _  surrendered
 himself  through  a  lawyer  in  the  High
 Court.  When  he  had  surrendered
 himself  through  a  lawyer.  it  means
 that  he  wanted  to  live  and  he  wanted
 protection  also.  The  importance  of
 Shanmugam  was  felt  more  by  the
 investigation  team  than  anybody  alse
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 because  when  he  was  taken  to  Veda.
 ranyam,  he  was  not  taken  by  road  or
 rail,  but  he  was  taken  by  a  helicopter.
 And  such  a  person,  after  reaching
 Vedaranyam,  did  not  have  that  much
 of  protection  and  was  not  guarded.
 He  escaped  from  the  place  where  he
 had  been  kept.  And  after  he  escaped,
 a  case  was  registered  against  him  for

 escaping  from  police  custody.  Then
 suicide  or  murder,  whatever  it  may  be,
 came  to  the  notice  of  the  investigation
 team.  After  that.  a  case  was  register-
 ed  against  Shanmugam  for  suicide.
 But  there  is  no  case  against  the  police
 for  having  allowed  him  to  escape.
 There  is  no  case  against  the  police
 for  having  allowed  him  to  commit
 suicide  or  for  having  allowed  the  mur-
 der  to  take  place.  Whe  he  escaned.
 a  very  few  police  men  were  guarding
 the  place  who  say  that  they  were  not
 मं  a  position  to  run  after  him  to
 catch  him  or  to  find  him  out.  But
 immediately  after  he  escaped,  within
 hours.  several  hundvecs  of  men  were
 put  on  duty  to  search  him  out.  Wher-
 ever  the  person  was  kept.  whether  in
 Vedaranyam  or  Kodikarai.  police
 should  have  been  guarding  the  bunga-
 low  or  the  guest  house  where  he  was
 kept.  I  do  not  know  as  to  why  the
 investigation  was  not  pushed  in  that
 direction  and  why  action  was  not
 taken  मं  that  regard.  Shanmugam.
 as  is  revealed  by  the  SIT,  was  a  very
 well-know  smuggler  in  that  very  area
 and  the  sea  coast  is  known  for  several
 smugglers.  There  must  have  been  a
 competition  among  these  smugglers.
 As  my  other  friend  had  put  it.  there
 are  other  people  in  that  area  who  are
 involved  with  the  LTTE  or  the  Sri
 Lankan  terrorists  who  came  _  there.
 There  was  a  report  in  the  Press  also
 that  there  may  be  very  many  _  politi-
 cians  there  who  were  on  the  pay  rolls
 of  Shanmugam.  Who  knows  that

 they  were  not  afraid  of  Shri  Shan-

 mugam’s  revealing  the  facts  which

 may  give  some  new  clues  to  Shri  Rajiv
 Gandhi’s  assassination  case.  Smug-
 gling  was  already  taking  place  with
 the  connivance  and  active  assistance
 of  the  local  police.  It  is  not  that  Shri

 Shanmugam  escaped  from  the  police
 custody  all  of  a  sudden.  It  was
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 ted  and  keeping  this  fact  in  view.
 The  § SIT  should  have  guarded  him

 more  carefully.  But  that  was  not

 there.

 When  Shri  Karunanidhi  was  the
 Chief  Minister,  at  that  time  the  State-
 hood  accepted  that  the  LTTE  was
 intercepting  the  wireless  messages  of
 the  Government.  If  that  is  true  then
 it  is  possible  that  the  LTTE  was  also
 intercepting  whatever  message  was
 sent  by  the  SIT  to  Government.  Even
 otherwise  SIT  was  giving  undue  publi-
 city  to  what  they  were  doing.  Suppose
 a  man  is  caught;  the  next  moment  the
 Press  comes  out  with  a  big  news  that
 so  and  so  person  is  caught,  he  is  being
 taken  to  such  and  such  place  and
 from  there  he  will  be  taken  to  another
 place  tomorrow.  This  is  the  type  of
 publicity  which  was  given  by  the  SIT.
 So,  the  persons  who  were  interested  in
 Shri  Shanmugam,  could  very  well
 keep  track  of  all  that  was  happening.
 This  aspect  was  not  considered  by
 SIT.

 There  is  yet  another  case.  Shri
 Subha  Sundram,  the  photographer
 has  got  very  powerful  political  links.
 If  such  people’s  arrest  are  given  wide
 publicity  then  we  can  very  well  see
 the  result  of  it.  These  are  the  pro-
 blems  which  should  have  been  con-
 sidered.

 Regarding  the  working  of  SIT,
 ।  can  admire  the  efficiency  of  the  top
 officers  who  are  manning  this  team
 but  their  efficiency  is  also  being  ques-
 tioned  today  because  of  their  incapa-
 bility  to  see  that  the  officers  who
 work  under  them  also  work  effiective-
 ly.  If  a  particular  person  defaults  or
 fails  to  do  what  is  expected  of  him,
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 the  top  officer  should  pull  him  up.
 If  this  is  the  way  the  investigation  of
 Shri  Rajiv  Gandhi’s  assassination
 case  is  going  on,  I  don’t  know  what
 will  happen  to  the  common  man.
 Government  should  take  care  of  all
 these  things.

 There  are  a  number  of  people
 who  in  the  past  7  or  8  years  have
 enjoyed  the  hospitalities  of  LTTE,  the
 Sri  Lankan  terrorists  and  the  Sri  Lan-
 kan  Tamils  as  Tamil  Scholars  and  on
 whose  expenses  they  have  gone  to
 foreign  countries  to  attend  the  cultural
 programmes  and  Tamil  conferences.
 They  have  encouraged  the  activities  of
 LTTE.  I  think  their  activities  should
 be  screened.  Many  of  them  may  be
 having  links  with  these  smugglers.

 The  Tamil  Nadu  Sea  Coast  bet-
 ween  Nagapatnam  and  Rameshwaram
 has  become  a  den  of  the  smugglers
 who  have  got  the  active  support  of
 our  politicians.  This  sea  coast  must
 be  protected  and  special  arrangement
 should  be  made  for  safeguarding  the
 sea  coast  from  smugglers  and  foreign
 terrorists.

 Thank  you,  Sir.

 Mr.  Chairman:  The  hon.  Home
 Minister  will  make  a  reply  tomorrow,
 before  the  commencement  of  the  dis-
 cussion  on  the  General  Budget  and
 now  the  House  stands  adjourned  to
 re-assemble  tomorrow  at  11.00  A.M.

 19.3  hrs.

 The  Lok  Sabha  then  adjourned  tik
 Eleven  of  the  Clock  on  ‘Thusday,
 Jaly  30,  1991/Sravana  8,  1913.0  (Saka).


